Ru l‘al Counties CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY

2 0 VICE CHAIR — DENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY
Environmental Services EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON

Iomt POWE!'S Authority TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)

TAG CHAIR — VACANT
E SI PA TAG VICE CHAIR — TODD STORTI, BUTTE COUNTY

PROGRAM MANAGER — STACI HEATON

Rural Counties’ Environmental Services Joint Powers
Authority
Board of Directors’ & Technical Advisory Meeting
Rural County Representatives of California Board Room
1215 K St., 16ttt Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814

Thursday, December 12,2019 9:00 a.m. - 3 p.m.

Only those items that indicate a specific time will be heard at the assigned time. All other items
may be taken out of sequence to accommodate the Board, the staff, and the general public.
Indicated time allocations are for planning purposes only and actual times will vary from those
indicated.

I. Call to Order, Self-Introductions, and Determination of Quorum

II. Business Matters Page 1
Discussion and possible action related to the following:

A. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting of October 17, 2019 - Supervisor Michael
Kobseff, ESJPA Chair (pp 3-16; 5 minutes)

B. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting of August 15, 2019 - Supervisor Kobseff
(pp 17-30; 5 minutes)

C. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting of June 20, 2019 - Supervisor Kobseff (pp
31-44; 5 minutes)

D. Review and approval of the 2020 Meeting Schedule - Staci Heaton, ESJPA Program
Manager (pg. 45; 5 minutes)

E. Review and approval of the 2020 ESJPA Budget — Milena De Melo, Controller,
RCRC (pp 47-49; 10 minutes)

F. Review and approval of the 2020 Contract Services Agreement between ESJPA
and RCRC - Staci Heaton, ESJPA Program Manager (pp 51-60; 5 minutes)

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIFOSA, MODOC, MONC,
NEVADA, FLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215K STREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: 916447-4806 FAX 916447-1667 WEB: WWW ESJPA.ORG



III.

IV,

VL
VIIL

G. Review of RCRC Solid Waste Policy Principles - Staci Heaton (pp 61-64; 5
minutes)

Public Comment
Any person may address the Board on any matter relevant to the Authority’s business,
but not otherwise on the agenda.

Presentations Page 65

A. Proposed General Waste Discharge Requirements for Commercial Composting
Operations/Proposed Statewide Disaster-Related Wastes General Order - Brianna
St. Pierre, Supervisor, State Water Resources Control Board (pp 67-176, 25 minutes)

B. Food Recovery in a Regulatory World - Jeffrey Warren, Environmental Management
Program Manager, County of El Dorado (25 minutes)

C. Report from CalRecycle - CalRecycle Staff (10 minutes)

Legislative Update Supplemental Package
(This item may be heard at any time during the meeting depending upon the
availability of staff) Discussion of Legislation - John Kennedy, RCRC Legislative
Advocate (10 minutes)

A. Complete Text of Selected Bills
B. Summary Listing of All Solid Waste Related Bills
Member County Concerns/Comments (10 minutes)

Solid Waste/Regulatory Update Page 177
Discussion and possible action related to the following:

A. CalRecycle
e SB 1383 Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Regulations- Mary Pitto, RCRC
Regulatory Affairs Advocate (pp 179-246; 20 minutes)
e AB901 Recycling and Disposal Reporting Regulations - Larry Sweetser, ESJPA
Consultant (pp 247-251; 5 minutes)

B. State Water Resources Control Board
» Landfill PFAS Orders - Larry Sweetser (5 minutes)
e Waste discharge fees - Larry Sweetser (5 minutes)

C. Department of Toxic Substances Control
» Photovoltaic Modules - Larry Sweetser (pp 253-257; 5 minutes)

D. Extended Producer Responsibility
¢ CA Product Stewardship Council Update - Doug Kobold, Executive Director,
CPSC (5 minutes)



e Mattress Recycling Council Update - Liz Wagner, Special Projects Coordinator,
Mattress Recycling Council (5 minutes)

E. Grant Program Update - Larry Sweetser (pp; 5 minutes)

F. Highlights of November CalRecycle Meetings - Larry Sweetser (pp 263-266; 5
minutes)

G. Other Regulatory Announcements/Issues of Interest
e Cal EPA CUPA Newsletters (pp 267-280)

VIII. Agenda Suggestions, Member County Presentation Volunteer, Workshop
Topics for Next ESJPA Board Meeting Scheduled Thursday, December 12, 2019.

IX. Articles of Interest Page 281
(pp 283-323)

X. Resolutions of Appreciation

XI. Adjournment

LW noe
E’ 12:00 PM Holiday Luncheon }g

1:00 PM

Technical Advisory Group Breakout Session
**Preparing for SB 1383 Implementation™*






Agenda Item II

BUSINESS MATTERS






Rural Counties
Environmental Services
Joint Powers Authority

ESJPA

CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY
VICE CHAIR — DENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ~ GREG NORTON

TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)

TAG CHAIR — JIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY
TAG VICE CHAIR —~ TODD STORTI, BUTTE COUNTY
PROGRAM MANAGER — STACI HEATON

Minutes of the Rural Counties’ Environmental Services
Joint Powers Authority
Board of Directors’ Meeting
Rural County Representatives of California
1215 K St.,, 16t Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814

Thursday, Oc¢tober 17, 2019

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT
Todd Storti

Tedd Ward

Lori Parlin

Aaron Albaugh

Ahmad Alkhayyat

Sam Cerveny

Michael Kobseff

Rachel Ross

Diane Rader

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE

Staci Heaton, Program Manager

John Kennedy, Legislative Affairs Advocate
Leigh Kammerich, Regulatory Affairs Specialist
Mary Pitto, Regulatory Affairs Advocate

Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant

GUEST SPEAKERS
Matt Henigan, CalRecycle

Joe Rasmussen, CalRecycle
Doug Kobold, CPSC

Liz Wagner, MRC

Nichole Dorr, PaintCare

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE
Greg Stanton

Rebecca Lillis

Don Renz

Jason Ledbetter

Butte County

Del Norte County
El Dorado County
Lassen County
Madera County
Mariposa County
Siskiyou County
Tehama County
Trinity County

Rural Counties ESJPA

RCRC Government Affairs
RCRC Government Affairs
RCRC Government Affairs
Sweetser and Associates, Inc.

El Dorado County
Placer County
Shasta County
Siskiyou County

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO,

NEVADA, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215 K STREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONP’3? 92164474806 FAX: 916-447-1667 WEB: WWW.ESJPA. ORG



Nate Birtwhistle ' Tuolumne County

John Pabst ACES Waste Services, Inc.

Curt Fujii Fujii Civil Engineering

Wendell Minshew SCS Engineers

Lauren Frigm : Sacramento Regional Conservation Corps
Jasmin Jackson Sacramento Regional Conservation Corps
Deb Phillips . San Joaquin/Greater Valley Conservation Corps
Julie Trueblood CalRecycle

Stephanie Becker CalRecycle

Kristen Pidcock CalRecycle

Alex Souza CalRecycle

Willie Carpenter CalRecycle

Jeff McDaniel CalRecycle

MEMBERS NOT REPRESENTED

Alpine County, Amador County, Calaveras County, Colusa County, Glenn County, Imperial
County, Inyo County, Lake County, Modoc County, Mono County, Nevada County, Plumas
County, and Sierra County.

I. Call to Order, Self-Introductions, and Determination of Quorum

Supervisor Michael Kobseff, ESJPA Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:06am. A quorum
was determined absent. Self-introductions were made.

II. Public Comment
No public comments were made.
III. Presentations
A. Report from CalRecycle

Joe Rasmussen, Cal Recycle introduced CalRecycle staff present and provided a hand-out on
SB 1383. He also provided an overview on upcoming grant program due dates: tire grant
program, due October 31st; farm and ranch abatement program, due November 21st—
connect with Stephanie Becker; organics grant program, due. November 21st; lastly, the
GGRF grant program is ongoing. Upcoming events include the rate determination
methodology workshop in San Diego on October 29th,

Larry Sweetser asked Stephanie Becker, CalRecycle what the follow up would be on the Farm
and Ranch Clean-up Workshop. He also mentioned the program is undersubscribed. Ms.
Becker responded that the timeline shared on listserv will be a month or two. She is doing
an informal webinar prior to formal rulemaking. A statute change might be needed to expand
the program and she would love feedback about that. The workshop was short, about 45
minutes and is on the CalRecycle YouTube channel. Mr. Sweetser also mentioned that



resource conservation districts are starting to apply. They have resources and it might be
worth teaming up with them.

Greg Stanton, El Dorado County asked about the organics grant program and whether it
could fund feasibility studies, or if it is more construction related projects. Mr. Rasmussen
couldn’t respond because of the phase the grant cycle is currently open, but did say that we
need more infrastructure and generally it depends on how much money we're allocated in
the budget to determine the best use of funds. Please send questions via email to the
CalRecycle grant program in order to get it added to the FAQ page.

B. “Turning the Ship Around: Wading Through the Plastic Seas” Markets Workshop

Tedd Ward, Director of Del Norte County Solid Waste Management Authority, gave a
presentation as a preview of a Workshop immediately following the ES]PA Meeting at CalEPA.

Del Norte county used to have a wider variety of materials in our recycling stream and have
eliminated a lot. All of Del Norte’s recyclables are now being processed in Humboldt county.
Now Recology control the processing system and rates have increased. All of the infrastructure
we depended upon is now totally different and not in our control. We’re trying to adapt. There
are laws that deal with plastic bags and straws, targeted materials. The legislation that’s being
developed is supposed to be material neutral, it applies to all packaging. But we know that the
problem is plastics.

Plastics come from boiled off vapors from petroleum and the resulting separations of the
petroleum grades. There are lots of midgrade solvents in between asphalt and petroleum fuel.
More material is used as a waste or some new plastic product. We will always have plastics if
we’re a fuel-driven economy. Globally, most of the plastics that are processed are not recycled
at all. Of the plastics that are recycled, they are generally downcycled (melted into another
product) once. Plastic production has continued to increase and has doubled since 2004.

Materials managers need to say this is not ok and we need a new strategy. We can’t have
recycling goals if we don’t change the packaging of materials. As Confucius has said, “If we
continue on our current course and we don’t change our direction, we'll end up where we’re
headed.” Twelve billion tons of plastics will be circling on our planet by the year 2050. Many
of the market destinations do not manage their plastics well. With China Sword, we have
momentum to send plastics to Southeast Asia. The emerging markets are a fraction of the
demand of China. The volume being used and the demand now is a pale shadow. '

Mr. Ward continued that his concern as a local manager is justifying to his community that the
recyclables collected are being managed well. Recognize that the plastics industry is on our
backs because some of these products have been a little bit recycled. But some products have
no plan to ever be recycled. For example, think about condiment packets: we sell convenience.
We need to talk about how we manage materials and how we can do it differently. Rural
communities need to be engaged. There are ways forward. It is concerning that we are
concurrently seeing a collapse of our infrastructure, and a collapse of recycling centers.



Supervisor Parlin asked if the CalRecycle workshop will it be recorded. The answer was yes,
CalRecycle should have it webcasted and should be posted.

Larry Sweetser asked about Del Norte’s zero-waste solid waste plan and asked if this [plastics
plan] was a part of it. Mr, Ward responded that his Board hasn’t taken a position on this plan.
There’s going to be legislative momentum that we’ll have to respond to. But we are being more
responsive to the CalRecycle mandates, not necessarily the zero-waste plan. Looking to the
public to help solve our problem.

IV. Legislative Update

John Kennedy, Legislative Affairs Advocate for RCRC, provided a legislative update on the
session that just ended and the conclusion of all measures that the Governor signed or
vetoed. The following bills were discussed.

Signed by the Governor:

AB 54 by Assemblymember Ting; California Beverage Container and Litter Reduction Act
[Bottle Bill].

e AB 54 was a modest proposal focusing largely in response to the recent closure of Re-
Planet recycling centers. Rural jurisdictions were largely spared since we bore the
greater share of prior closures.

o Grocers have limited relief until July 2020, but only those that have been recently
impacted by closures. Same type of relief if there is a pending application with
CalRecycle in underserved convenience zones.

e Extended the sunset date of an existing pilot program regarding consumer access to
redemption opportunities. Geared to San Francisco and rural jurisdictions. And
provides some funding. Trying to get a little innovative with consumer redemption
opportunities. - |

e Added late to the bill is a $5 million supplemental payment for low volume recyclers,
with some strings attached, e.g. CalRecycle must submit a report on how to expand or
re-configure convenience zones. It's a mixed bag. Some don’t like the increased
subsidization of these recycling centers, but it might be a necessary evil for
consumers to get their depositback.

e The Governor’s signing message acknowledged this is a stopgap and wants a more
comprehensive package in the future. Others bills stalled, like AB 634.

e Michael Kobseff asked about recycling at grocery stores and gave an example of
what’s happening in Siskiyou. The city of Weed had their bins removed because they
were getting needles and human waste in those recycling bins. It was easier to pull
them out altogether.

AB 187 by Assemblymember Cristina Garcia and Frank Bigelow; mattress recycling program.
o Response to an audit of the Mattress Recycling Program. '
¢ One of the important pieces is the requirement for CalRecycle to establish goals for
consumer convenience, including one per county (except for Alpine County).



AB 815 by Assemblymember Aguiar-Curry; dual stream recycling incentives.
* CalRecycle good faith determinations that local jurisdictions have source reduction
recycling element.
~* Had some early concerns, got amendments with intent language that 1) this is to
incentivize, not penalize, dual stream recycling, and 2) it is not the intent to do more
enforcement against non-dual stream programs.

AB 827 by Assemblymember McCarty; commercial and organic waste recycling bins.
* Requires businesses and public entities subject to mandatory commercial organic
waste recycling to provide customers with organic recycling bins on the premises.
¢ Increases consumer convenience to meet organic and solid waste recycling goals.

AB 1162 by Assemblymember Kalra; hotel lodging personal care products, small plastic
bottles.
e Doesn’'t impact us directly, but it bans hotels and motels from providing small
consumer personal care products. You can still request them and they could still be
provided on a complimentary basis, but it can’t be provided for in your room.

AB 1583 by Assemblymember Eggman; California Recycling Market Development Act.
* Willincrease recyclable markets by:

o Extends CAEATFA program by 10 years, sales and use tax exemption;

o Extends the sunset date of the recycling market development zone program at
CalRecycle. ’ '

© Requires CalRecycle to convene a commission on recycling markets, curbside
recycling, how to achieve goals.

o Eliminates “chasing arrows” on plastic products, will only have the resin
number. This is a nod to the fact that not everything is actually recyclable.

AB 1597 by the Assembly Committee on Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials;
hazardous waste transportation.

e Codifies federal requirements to hazardous waste manifest requirements. State law
now conforms to federal law.

SB 726 by Senator Caballero; household hazardous waste.

¢ Increased utilization of hazardous waste re-use programs to reduce hazardous waste
disposal and reduce costs.

Vetoed bills:

AB 792 by Assemblymember Ting; plastic containers minimum recycled content.
* 50% recycled content mandate on beverage containers by 2030.
* Veto message was because it was too much of a burden on CalRecycle. Will be part of
the discussion next year.

No action:

SB 68 by Senator Galgiani; treated wood waste bill.



e Sunset of the program is 2021.

e Author will work with Administration to reduce costs. Department of Finance is
concerned with costs on DTSC—have massive structural deficit. Held hostage to a
larger discussion on how to fix DTSC.

SB 54 and AB 1080 by Senator Allen and Assemblymember Gonzalez-Fletcher, respectively;
single use plastic packaging.

o Caught a lot industry and opponents off guard that these bills moved forward so fast
and so far because they are so broad and far reaching.

e Required manufactures to determine if products are recyclable and compostable.
Required manufacturers to achieve certain recycling rates for their product and
packaging types.

o Industry didn’t really come out until late, weren’t exactly opposed, but had ongoing
concerns. Ag was concerned that their produce packaging would be affected (e.g. for

. berries); wine and glass industry, beverage container manufactures—eventually
moved to neutral by delaying implementation. Wine continued to oppose; they are
not currently subject to the beverage container recycling program.

o Interesting developments is where the plastics industry ended up. The American
Chemistry Council (ACC) wanted tweaks, wanted to impose fees on their own
members for market development. ACC will be interested in a funding system that
comes into play. The opposition in general wants to see an infrastructure package.
We've been saying that as well per our experience with SB 1383 requirements. This
was acknowledged by the authors that we need some funding out there. Looked like
we could get there, but it stalled based on other politics. '

e Governor wanted these bills on his desk, but other politics came into play. We
engaged heavily throughout to make sure we do not have obligations like AB 939 and
SB 1383. Think we're in good shape from a local government perspective moving
forward next year. We have the right mix.

Next steps:

We've been working with the solid waste industry on a generator fee to provide significant
funding for solid waste management, assistance for local governments to implement SB
1383, offset SWRCB permit fees, etc. for a comprehensive funding package. The only thing
missing-was plastics recycling. ACC solution would have paired nicely. Things got sideways
over one provision: local governments can’t take this new funding into consideration when
negotiating new contracts. We entered into this discussion because we wanted to reduce
local government and consumer CoSts. Still need to iron that out. It's a non-starter if we
restrict ability to for local governments to negotiate solid waste fees and franchise fees.

Latest development is that Los Angeles county approved a call for the state to approve new
funding for infrastructure. Wants the state to pay $200 million per year recycling
infrastructure, MRFs, organics recycling, market development. LA carries a lot of weight in
the Capitol, makes solid waste funding a little more realistic. The Governor is concerned
about the state of the budget, revenues for next year. All the players in solid waste are
starting to coalesce around funding.



Seeing bond discussions for solid waste infrastructure, climate adaptation and resiliency.
Might come up next year. Legislature put forth a $15 billion school bond instead.
Assemblymember Mullin introduced AB 1298, a bond that is light on details (no numbers in
any of the pots of funding) but there is a section dedicated to address critical infrastructure
to reduce plastics, divert organic waste from landfills, provide grants, loans and incentives
to assist solid waste generally. Not something we've talked about before, will be interesting
to see where this goes.

Tedd Ward asked for clarification about rural amendments requested in SB 54. Mr. Kennedy
responded 1) deposit protection for consumers. The authors are interested in giving.
manufacturers relief, but these deposit programs don’t always work in rural areas because
we don't have a way in our communities to get our money back; 2) local government
compliance costs—e.g. CalRecycle regs don’t disproportionately impact disadvantaged
communities; 3) who has ultimate obligation to achieve these rates? Need it to be on
manufacturers. Our biggest victory was to ensure that it is manufacturers, can’t impose
obligations on local jurisdictions. Manufacturers need skin in the game.

Jason Ledbetter, SiSkiyou County, asked which bill was vetoed by the Governor and why. Mr.
Kennedy said it is AB 792; the Governor’s statement was that it was too burdensome on
CalRecycle to determine feasibility.

V. Member County Concerns/Comments
No concerns were raised.
VL. Solid Waste/Regulatory Update

A. CalRecycle
e SB 1383 Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Regulations

Mary Pitto, ESJPA Consultant, provided a summary of the SB 1383 regulations and the
proposed alternative to our organics program, rather than the prescriptive one, for rural
jurisdictions. This was our attempt before the third draft came out. We talked about what
rural counties could do. Ifyou have comments, we’re still trying to get CalRecycle to consider
this. We would appreciate input on additions or deletions to this proposal. One of the things
it does was take the responsibility of the edibles out of solid waste division and put it into
health departments or environmental health. Also was specific that the green building code
water model ordinance would be with the building department. The Board of Supervisors is
responsible, but it needs to be referred to a more appropriate department.

The CalRecycle EIR came out in the last few months, RCRC submitted comments on the draft
EIR. Difficult to comment on specifics because it’s a program EIR. Difficult to make comments
for you because you don’t have the projects yet. However, we did talk about their unrealistic
expectations that over 170 new composting digesters would be built by 2025-and unrealistic
urban air basin requirements. Also brought up bear populations, want them to reevaluate.
Air quality analysis was lacking in detail, no appendix with data on air quality—can’t see
their supporting documents on that or for their traffic analysis that says it's a net benefit.



Also questioned their adequacy of alternatives. They refuted the under sink disposer. We
asked that they consider a suite of options rather than just standalone programs.

Third formal draft of regs came out on October 2rd for a 15-day comment period. RCRC will
respond by the deadline tomorrow. I'd like to share some of the positive changes:

1) waivers and exemptions granted for populations less than 70,000 have been
extended two years to December 31, 2026;

2) linguistic outreach was simplified—local jurisdictions decide when they need to
translate materials;

3) organic waste capacity planning is temporarily exempt for the first planning period,
i.e. the next five years;

4) allowed more local studies and data for capacity planning;

5) now allow mulch for procurement;

6) exempted rural jurisdictions [19 counties] from procurement requirements for 5
years (until December 31, 2026);

7) under the enforcement section, jurisdictions now have to review de minimis every 5
years for physical space waivers;

8) removed penalty tables, now it is easier to determine and simpler. But they deleted
the amounts previously, which amounted to much less. The lowest amount went from
$50 to $500;

9) grey container waste evaluation;

10)phase in incompatible materials;

11)revised status impact report.

Larry Sweetser continued and said this has been the hardest regulatory package in his over
30 years. There is going to be a lot of arguments with CalRecycle in the future; lots of
questions to keep on top of. For example, what does a hauler route mean? Daily, weekly,
monthly, annually? The definition sounds like a complicated term for what they want to do.

Sampling got simpler, but still very comprehensive. Still trying to get cost estimates to
conduct sampling. No change was made to how they determine census tract but we had good
argument for rural areas to allow for smaller increments. CalRecycle’s rationale for not
revising this requirement was unclear.. We also weren’t successful with modifying the bear
exemptions. We proposed an alternative standard. Agricultural Commissioners have
expressed concerns about bears as well.. SWANA produced a picture of a bear in'LA county
at 1,400 foot elevation.

Michael Kobseff said the bear population is exploding because we can't have hounds. Its
going to become more problematic in the future.

Tedd Ward said his Board gave us authority to approach the legislature with a rural
alternative. We should divide up the tasks with other jurisdictions with better expertise—

like the bear issue.
Larry Sweetser continued that he appreciates mulch being added into procurement, but

don’t understand the testing of it for pathogens and metals. Cart colors were made more
flexible. Some jurisdictions are still going to have to change out some colors. Unsegregated

10



single-collection garbage container will be required has to be taken to high diversion
organics waste facilities, but I haven’t been able to identify where those facilities are. There’s
a lot of handling of those materials before they go to landfills. Penalties still have vague terms,
but lots of money could potentially rack up. If you have to renegotiate contracts during the
corrective action plan, this is a very timely process... Need more time during the enforcement
mechanism.

We will be looking to pull together more information so you can easily explain this. Also
working on a timeline, a list of dates of what has to happen and when. Outline on ordinances
that have to be done by local officials. Key points for board packets and presentations.
Calculator to figure out the costs.

Rachel Ross, Tehama County, said program development will be $180,000, which doesn’t
include implementation costs for 64,000 customers.

Don Renz, Shasta County, said they put out an RFP for organics planning. It’s going to be in
the $150,000 ballpark for getting a study on current and future organics, recycling market,
implementation costs. That will be an approximately 6-month feasibility study.

Mr. Sweetser said ESJPA is compiling all information that counties can use. Please forward
any information to Staci Heaton so we can keep a repository.

Todd Storti, Butte County, said they also did a capacity and needs assessment for SB 1383.
One of the deliverables is a new rate model to the Board of Supervisors. Its $300,000. Main
goal is to get out of the death spiral with our rate model. There is a misconception that our
gate fee can cover everything, need to detail out the bill like cell phones do. Add a SB 1383
line.

Don Renz added there is misconception we're making money on our recyclables. Also, he
might be able to give a scope and scale overview next quarter of his consultant’s contract to
give ESJPA an overview. Consultants are trying to expand into this market. Be wary of the
person you're hiring, make sure they’re capable and qualified of doing what you're asking.

Mr. Sweetser warned there are a lot of consultants out there and he’s declining to join other
consultants to stay free of conflict to assist ESJPA members.

Michael Kobseff asked what is the end result; is there a benefit for what's trying to be done?
Mr. Sweetser responded that the intent has merit, but this is the difficult road we’re on,
whether it’s the right one or not.

Mr. Kobseff also asked what it is going to cost the public and will this be a Prop 218 process.
Mr. Sweetser indicated that CalRecycle legal staff has been asked that question but no answer
was provided. Mr. Sweetser said he’s working a format for what other counties are doing so
you can compare and contrast services and costs. Asked CalRecycle what to do if the vote
fails with the public.

1



Ahmad Alkhayyat, Madera County, said if you don’t have mandatory collection, you don’t
have to do the Prop 218 process. If its subscription based, you change the tipping fee.

Larry Sweetser suggested documenting all efforts, even if they don’t work, so you can explain
to CalRecycle what efforts have been tried. CalRecycle is looking at education statewide.
Going to be a hard sell for the public.

Mary Pitto reminded everyone that in your packet is a sample letter for you to take.to your
Board of Supervisors. The new letter we're sending to CalRecycle will talk about the impacts
this will have, but technically CalRecycle will only have to respond to changes made to the
third draft. We're limiting our comments to the changes, making a nod to our previous
comments because they’re already on the record. CalRecycle’s expectations is unrealistic.
We're suggesting they focus more on dealing with urban counties first. The 15 most urban
counties represent 83% of the state’s population. The next range of 24 counties should be
phase two. The 19 counties that have less than 70,000 people should be delayed until 2030.
'm still amazed that they would put any resources into areas with less than 70,000, its less
than 1% of the population.

e AB901 Recycling and Disposal Reporting Regulations - Larry Sweetser, ESJPA
Consultant

Larry Sweetser said reports are due on October 15% in the old system. He’ll be reaching out
to CalRecycle to make sure they got in on time.

Diane Rader, Trinity County said the next one due in new system does not have what is due
live in the system yet. She can’t see the data fields of what to report. Rachel Ross, Tehama

County agreed' and is having the same issue. Mr. Sweetser will try to disseminate the list of
what you have to report.

B. State Water Resources Control Board
e Landfill PFAS Orders - Larry Sweetser
Larry Sweetser said PFAS is still in the news. He is asking for reports from counties that had
to do the testing. Don Renz, Shasta County said they're still collecting samples. Mr. Sweetser

said some jurisdictions asked for delays in samples. There are upcoming PFAS workshops,
2-day workshops on December 4-5.

Rachel Ross, Tehama addeéd there is @ huge issue with where to take leachate. Concern
wastewater treatment won't take it anymore.

e Waste discharge fees - Larry Sweetser

Larry Sweetser said there is no changes to Landfill WDR fees. Other WDR fees do have
increases.

C. Department of Toxic Substances Control

12



e Photovoltaic Modules

Larry Sweetser said comments were submitted and that the proposed regulations were
greatly improved but still have issues. The proposed regulations state that comingled units
are electronic devices, not solar panels. Can’t comingle electronic devices with solar panels
in the same container. Itis not clear why they took that out. There’s a 100-kilogram limit for
transport. That's literally 3-4 solar panels. You're required to give DTSC 30 days’ notice
before accepting a PV panel, but how do we do that if they are found illegally dumped. Should
be able to notify after the fact.

VIl. Announcements

Staci Heaton, Program Manager, was given permission by the Chair to speak on something
off the agenda regarding Public Safety Power Shutoffs (PSPS). As we're tracking and working
on these PG&E and Southern California Edison PSPS issues, we want to get your feedback
and ask thatyou please keep us apprised of PSPS events and how it impacts your operations
moving forward.

Don Renz, Shasta, said his main franchise hauler has compressed natural gas vehicles and
could not get a generator large enough to supply. Two routes didn’t get collected. Lots of
folks- put trash in the recycling container, to the point where it couldn’t be sorted and
recycled. A $100,000 generator would have been required to continue our operation during
PSPS. Food spoilage will also likely increase organic waste.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte, said we have to do constituent concern monitoring every five years.
And that while they weren’t subject to outages, the labs they were shipping samples to
couldn’t take them and they had to scramble to get the analysis completed in time.

Rachel Ross, Tehama, added they didn’t have the ability to communicate with anybody, even
themselves onsite.

VIII. Solid Waste/Regulatory Update, continued
D. Extended Producer Responsibility
¢ CA Product Stewardship Council Update

Doug Kobold, Executive Director of CPSC, parlayed off Mr. Sweetser’s discussion on PV
Module comments during the Regulatory update. Mr. Kobold added that the limitations on
how many panels a hauler can haul will be very problematic and they are working diligently
to remedy. Another potential hold up with these regulations is if DTSC will get their waiver
(authority) from the federal government to designate these PV modules as universal waste.
DTSC finally got around to sending letter to U.S. EPA in July 2019 but haven’t gotten
authorization yet. These regulations need to be finished by March [2020] but can’t do it if
U.S. EPA doesn’t give them the authority. In 5 years going to see a huge increase in solar

13



panels because of new building codes, and inferior panels coming off roofs. Homeowners
going to want 15-20 year panels. CPSC wants a durability standard.

On other bills, AB 1509 will come back in January. Need a solution on lithium-ion batteries,
mitigate those fires. These batteries are now in single-use size and being introduced into the
waste stream. Very concerned.

SB 424, tobacco waste bill, coming back in January. Want to keep cigarette butts in the bill,
create a stewardship for vaping waste. If you haven’t encountered these, they are a plastic
device with a microchip, have a lithium-ion battery all in one unit. Very hard to deal with.

CPSCis very involved in SB 54/AB 1080. The hauling community is opposed. They have some
valid concerns, but are working with them on the EPR section.

Finally, Mr. Kobold announced the installation of 300 bins statewide for our medical bins
starting tomorrow, in collaboration with DHCS. They’re reaching out to counties that didn’t

submit any applications.

Lastly, the AB 729 carpet bill was signed by the governor. Gives CalRecycle tools they need
to make that program a success, i.e. take the keys away from CARE. Wants to ultimately
increase the recycling of carpet, which is only at 12%.

[X. Announcements, continued

Chair Kobseff welcomed Matt Henigan, new Deputy Director of CalReycle’s Materials
Management and Local Assistance Division. Mr. Henigan fills the position of Mr. Howard
Levenson as Deputy Director Materials Management & Local Assistance, who recently
retired. Mr. Henigan made some brief introductory remarks and said he is looking forward
to engaging and collaborating with the ESJPA.-

X. Solid Waste/Regulatory Update, continued
e Mattress Recycling Council Update

Liz Wagner, Special Projects Coordinator, MRC said they are holding an Alpine event this
weekend and just held one in Del Norte. Tedd Ward, Del Norte reported that they're seeing
decreasing numbers. Ms. Wagner continued that MRC is working with a tribe in Del Norte
for a collection event. Plumas event is on October 19th. Glenn county transfer station recently
opened. In other news, we're hiring a new Central Valley coordinator named Jennifer Durant.
She will start coming to ESJPA meetings and will represent the following counties: Alpine,
Amador, Calaveras, El Dorado, Inyo, Mariposa, Mono and Tuolumne.

e PaintCare Update
Nichole Dorr, Central California Regional Coordinator for PaintCare, said they are working

on their annual report to submit to CalRecycle. Hoping to have some highlights at the next
meeting. Have upcoming Alpine and Nevada county events. PaintCare is celebrating our 10t

14



anniversary as an organization. Will celebrate with mass mailing to our partners with
brochures, etc. Also have a webpage with resources for our solid waste managers. Providing
compensation on a reimbursement basis for re-use to help expand the program, e.g. a shed.
Will also co-promote and help cover advertising costs. Preparing events for 2020, get in
touch with your coordinator if you want an event.

e CARE Update - Lisa Mekis, California Senior Associate, Carpet America
Recovery Effort

CARE representatives were absent.
E. Grant Program Update

Larry Sweetser is continuing to implement the OPP grant for approved counties. The grant
was approved for tire amnesty, $90,000 for five counties.

USDA asked for more info on their application for organics management guide. Trying to get
an update from them. To apply for the new cycle, see page 103 in ESJPA packet.

Also, a number of your oil centers may have gotten kicked out of their hazardous waste
identification number because the verification questionnaire wasn’t returned. More and
more oil centers sending filters out as hazardous waste. CUPA’s are trying to regulate oil
centers as a large quantity generator. Some jurisdictions have exempted them. Mr. Sweetser
will try to get more clarity from DTSC.

F. Highlights of September/October CalRecycle Meetings

Larry Sweetser discussed Merced county’s completed compliance order for mandatory
commercial recycling. At this week’s Monthly meeting, CalRecycle is leading off on SB 212
rulemaking. Hopefully it will be a no cost program for pharmaceutical and sharps waste
management.

There’s an upcoming workshop on designated collectors of covered electronic wastes. Makes
permanent the emergency regulations. Some time ago the rules were changed so schools
couldn’t use them and had to go to the local jurisdiction.

OPP grant awards announced. Thinks every one of our counties that applied got one.

There’s an REP for 2020 waste characterization study. Will include commercial generator
-and edible food waste study. It’s a benchmark for SB 1383 compliance.

Tedd Ward said he’s seeing determinations that [beverage container and oil] grants can only
be used very narrowly. Challenging to find uses of the funds that are appropriate. Wants to
promote all of our programs, not just oil and beverage containers. It's an ongoing frustration.
Mr. Sweetser responded that part of it is not due to CalRecycle rules, they are rules imposed
by the State Auditor.

15



G. Agenda Suggestions, Member County Presentation Volunteer, Workshop Topics
for Next ESJPA Board Meeting Scheduled Thursday, December 12, 2019.

Larry Sweetser offered to a committee member from the SB 1383 Edible Food Recovery
focus group to present.

XI. Articles of Interest
No articles were referenced.
XII. Adjournment - was called at 11:52am

Respectfully submitted,
Leigh Kammerich, Regulatory Affairs Specialist

16



A Ru ral Countles CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY
. . \Y -D
3 Enwronmental SEI'VICES ICE CHAIR ENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY

. i N ) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON
5 Ty Joint Powers Authority

SN TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)
. TAG CHAIR — JIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY
ES] PA TAG VICE CHAIR — TODD STORT!, BUTTE COUNTY

-]

PROGRAM MANAGER — STACI HEATON

Rural Counties’ Environmental Services Joint Powers
Authority
Board of Directors’ & Technical Advisory Meeting
Rural County Representatives of California Board Room
1215 K St.,, 16t Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814

Thursday, August 15,2019

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT

Jim McHargue Amador County

Todd Storti Butte County

Tedd Ward Del Norte County

Lori Parlin ' El Dorado County

Matt Kingsley Inyo County

Lars Ewing Lake County.

Tom Valentino Lassen County

Sam Cerveny Mariposa County

Justin Nalder ' Mono County

Bob Perreault Plumas County

Rachel Ross Tehama County

Diane Rader Trinity County

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE

Staci Heaton, Program Manager Rural Counties ESJPA

Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant Sweetser and Associates, Inc.
Arthur Wylene, General Counsel RCRC Governmental Affairs
John Kennedy, Legislative Advocate RCRC Governmental Affairs
Leigh Kammerich, Regulatory Affairs Specialist RCRC Governmental Affairs
Mary Pitto, Regulatory Affairs Advocate RCRC Governmental Affairs
GUEST SPEAKERS

Claire Hervey Collins, Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP
Paul Beck, Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP

Julie Trueblood, CalRecycle '

Doug Kobold, CPSC

Nate Pelczar, CPSC

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL. NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO,
NEVADA, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215 KSTREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONF: O16-447-4806 FAX: 916-447-1667 WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG
17 i



Liz Wagner, MRC
Daria Kent, PaintCare

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE

Greg Stanton El Dorado County
Don Renz Shasta County
Tom Ramont Shasta County
Kati Galvani Lake County
Steve Rodowick Butte County
Eric Miller Butte County
John Pabst ACES

Johnny Plasse ACES

Tim Raibley HDR Engineering
Curt Fujii Fujii Civil Engineering
Rod Malloy N&R Publications
Jeffory McDaniel CalRecycle
Roberta Jetter CalRecycle

Ward Danner CalRecycle

Daisy Kong CalRecycle

Willie Carpenter CalRecycle

Alex Souza CalRecycle

L Call to Order, Self-Introductions, and Determination of Quorum

Jim McHargue, Technical Advisory Group Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:02am. Self-
introductions were made. A quorum was not determined.

II. Business Matters
A. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting of June 20, 2019

Due to the absence of a quorum, approval of the minutes was deferred to the next ESJPA
meeting.

B. Administrative Matters

Staci Heaton, Program Manager for the ESJPA, announced the Chair and Vice Chair couldn’t
be here today. The agenda was cut off from the packets that were sent out electronically and
that extra copies would be provided at the meeting: Thirdly, she announced she would have
to step out briefly between 10:30am and 10:45am with RCRC Chair, Supervisor Kingsley to
attend a policy meeting on another matter.

C. Remote ESJPA Meeting Participation and Brown Act Compliance
Arthur Wylene, RCRC General Counsel discussed the information provided in the memo in

the packet. Generally, the Brown Act has provisions that allow for teleconference meetings.
It is possible, however, whenever there is a tension in law with efficiency and accountability

18



and transparency, the Brown Act defers to accountability and transparency. Regarding the
requirements of the Brown Act, first, teleconference meeting are not designed to let folks call
in from office, home, or car. Designed with a model in which people participate from multiple
locations'and each location must meet open meetings criteria so the public can observe, such
as speakerphone capacity; opportunity for public comment. Multiple public meeting
locations have to have an agenda posted in the location. No last minute teleconferencing. Any
vote taken has to be by roll call. All requirements apply even when no member of the public
participates in attendance. With specialized bodies like this, it’s hard to make these
requirements relatable. The system is designed for public participation, but there’s lots of
logistical complications.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County, expressed his appreciation for putting this in writing. The
schedule can be a nightmare to travel here. It’s nice to have a memo that addresses each of
the concerns. It’s better than a blanket no, it’s too complicated and that we don’t want to go
through the details.

Ms. Heaton offered that staff would be happy to look into the possibility of livestreaming the
meeting so that staff can view the meetings for the information. It would be a one-way
stream, however, without the ability to participate for those watching.

Mr. Wylene said he has observed how the meetings are structured, and there are also
practical implications on how the board interacts. Meeting attendees would lose the benefits
of face to face dialogue with teleconferencing. If a meeting is livestreamed, it affects the
dialogue. All of these things can affect the quality and quantity of the dialogue. Those aren’t
lawyer issues, those are policy issues.
III. Public Comment
No public comments were made.
IV. Business Matters, continued
A. Resolution of Appreciation
Jim McHargue, Amador County, presented a resolution of appreciation from the Board of
Directors to Steve Rodowick, Butte County, on the occasion of his retirement as a Recycling
Coordinator from the Public Works Department. Mr. Rodowick was recognized for his years
of service as a solid waste and recycling professional, as well as his contributions to the ESJPA
since 2004.
V. Presentations
A. Prevailing Wage Law and Potential Impacts on the Solid Waste Industry
Claire Collins, Attorney with Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP, began the presentation. Ms.

Collins in the chair of real property group. There is a ton of overlap with real estate and public
agency; included in real estate is construction. It’s the perfect place where prevailing wage

19



rises. We are Counsel to the Los Angeles County Sanitation District, 24 districts in LA County
operating 6 closed and open sanitary landfills, as well as 3 materials recovery facilities and
transfer stations serving approximately 5.5 million people in LA County. Through that, we've
seen the construction and closure of their largest landfill. Prevailing wage applies because
landfills are a-giant construction site. What are prevailing wages? They are wages paid to
employees in the trades and craftsona public works project, which is defined in code. It means
it is a public works construction funded by a public agency. Wages differ based on wage type,
based on region, and by type of work. Prevailing wage is not a minimum wage, not a living
wage. When it comes to levels, we’ve got minimum wage, then living, then prevailing wage at
the top, it’s basically a union wage. The history of prevailing wage comes out of a social policy
from the government in Kansas in the early in 1890s to encourage fair labor practices.
Government is a buyer of construction services, it could be an economic driver for constituents
to make enough money to support their families. It morphed in the 1920s and 1930s and really
took off, but with an element of racism and xenophobia when the Davis,Bacon Act was passed.
Thirty-two states have their own prevailing wage laws, which is referred to as mini-Davis
Bacon. Ten states have repealed prevailing wage laws for a variety of reasons, mostly occurred
in the 1980s. What's changed over time is-that now it ensures the same wages to union and
non-union workers. Studies have been done that show prevailing wage does not demonstrably
increase project costs over the long term. When are prevailing wages necessary? It's for
construction trades and crafts; all construction related, including alterations to a public work,
street or sewer work, maintenance work. '

Paul Beck, Partner with Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP, said when interpreting these
obligations from the courts and Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), the one trend that
you see is that more and more types of work are being covered by prevailing wage laws. If DIR
can find a nexus with the work being done, they will say it’s a public work construction. Courts
interpret these laws broadly, give exceptions narrowly. Why are these goals advanced by the
courts and DIR? Protections for workers from substandard wages, allows union and nonunion
contractors to compete on a more even playing field in terms of pay and fringe benefits. This
provides compensation to nonpublic employees for lack of benefits. Theory if employees are
well paid, well trained, and taken care of, project efficiency and quality will increase. Mr. Beck
gave some examples, such as a public agency leasing property to a developer, but developer
gets rent break. It's subject to prevailing wage because the public entity would benefit the
entity responsible for the work.

Ms. Collins said it gets hazy when its built by private developer. Public subsidy triggers
prevailing wage requirement. :

Mr. Beck continued with the next example, an agency trying to redevelop an old mall enters
into an agreement with the developer to build and operate a theatre for ten years on property
purchased from the agency at market rate. Agency loans developer millions to operate theatre,
to be re-paid if the developer does not operate the theatre at end of the ten period. And the
Agency builds parking lot. Yes, prevailing wage applies to the development of the theatre
because the totality of the project is a public work, it has infrastructure to support the project.
Ms. Collins noted how you can see how prevailing wage has evolved.

20



Mr. Beck provided a third example of a prevailing wage care. An exporter of petroleum leased
land from agency and operated open air coke storage facility. Air Board rules changed, and the
exporter was going to need to comply with air regulations and add conveyer system. Agency
landlord entered into 2 different contracts. One to build conveyer system, subject to prevailing
wage. The second [contract] was for enclosing the facility done by tenant and private
contractor with no public subsidy. Prevailing wage applied because of the entire project.

Mr. Beck’s last example was a district contracts with a solid waste company to operate landfill
located on public property. Does the operator have to pay prevailing wages? To whom? There
isn’t a court decision on this one. But we have 2 Attorney General opinions. One from 40 years
ago said the construction of landfill was covered [under prevailing wage], but what about
others, like those who take fees at the gate, or direct traffic. In 2000, another Attorney General
opinion came out about waste transfer station. The waste transfer station is already
constructed. [The opinion] said not only are people who work at the waste transfer station not
covered [by prevailing wage], -others not subject to prevailing wage. There have been no
further statements from the Attorney General. There are certain aspects that not entirely
clear—like temporary workers to pick up papers.

Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant, said a lot of maintenance activity comes in to do repairs. All
those small tasks, how do they fit in? Mr. Beck answered that the maintenance part is an odd
duck. Landscaping, for example, is under maintenance. [ would say if you want to be safe, you
should pay prevailing wage.

Mr. Wylene asked a clarifying question, whether thresholds for exemptions are for prevailing
wage or for registration requirements. Mr. Beck answered that it was likely for prevailing
wage. Mr. Sweetser also asked for clarity on the obligations of the jurisdiction, and Mr. Beck
said the obligation is ultimately on the contractor to pay prevailing wage.

Ms. Collins also gave a briefing on the Kaanaana vs. BBSI case. Currently before the California
Supreme Court. By way of background, we got a call from another agency to bring it to her
attention last year. Our client since 1923, didn’t know there was a lawsuit involving our own
client. We have temporary workers to do belt line sorting at the MRF. That contractor is BBSL.
They were sued [class-action lawsuit] based on insufficient lunch breaks. Wage should’ve been
a prevailing wage. Case is about prevailing wage at public facility without public agencies as a
party. Didn'’t get treated by prevailing wage specialists At the trial court, BBSI'won. Appellate
court reversed the decision that originally ruled in favor of BBSI. Appellate Court said the
statute just says, “work done,” not construction work, and prevailing wage applies. Labor Code
1720, which defines public work, says it’s all type of work. What this means is that every
operational worker must be paid prevailing wage. It upends our traditional notions of what is
prevailing wage and when is it paid. Challenge to be heard by California Supreme Court next
year. Opening brief filed in May. Opposition brief filed in July. Amicus brief being prepared
now, due in September. Trying to avoid prevailing wage mission creep.

CurtFujii, gave an example that landfill operators are generally consid ered to be different from
construction operators because they work 12 months a year. With that basis, he has heard DIR
issuing a special landfill equipment operator prevailing wage. Further, Mr. Fujii said what
Local 3 has done is negotiate lower wage rates for equipment operators working fora private

21



company operating a landfill under contract with a public agency. Mr. Beck responded that
first, its more task related. It's about constructing on the landfill, not intermittent work.
Secondly, certain parts of the law entail project labor agreements. Could be talking about that,
which is permissible under other portions of law.

Tom Valentino, Lassen County, asked if any publicly owned and privately-operated landfill is
being paid prevailing wage. Ms. Collins there is one that she’s aware of. Mr. Valentino
continued, asking if it was safe to assume a blanket across the waste industry that at any
publicly owned facility that's privately operated will be affected by prevailing wage. Ms. Collins
responded that they should all be prevailing wage right now, it’s a.construction contract.

Mr. Wylene asked what is the prevailing wage that-applies? Northern California and Southern
California work different in practice. What you actually have to pay is different.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County asked if there are solid waste agencies clearly utility district or
improvement districts? Mr. Beck replied no. Mr. Ward continued, said from a solid waste
district perspective, he is concerned with clean-up activities done by volunteer groups. Means
that would harm his ability to clean up anything. He would like that point brought forward.
Don’t want beach clean ups to be shuttered because of volunteer agreements.

Mr. Beck said one of the arguments we’ll make in the appeal is that new tasks, the state doesn’t
have a waste sorter category or volunteers, etc. | think the argument is that it's been operated
this way for 80 years.

Eric Miller, Butte County, said they have stalled projects. Let’s assume if we load trucks with
county staff, how far down the line does prevailing wage go? There’s transportation involved.
Mr. Beck said truck drivers are entitled if they are transporting construction and demolition
waste.

Justin Nalder, Mono County, asked about the scope of work. If we bid for an operator, does
prevailing wage apply for the operation? Mr. Beck replied yes, but it depends on the task. Mr.
Nalder asked if he can call out the positions that require prevailing wage? Ms. Collins said yes.
Not those collecting tipping fee, for example. If there’s a category at DIR, then prevailing wage.
Only pay prevailing wage for certain job classifications.

Rachel Ross, Tehama County, said have gotten sued over prevailing wage before. Case ruled in
contractors favor that they don’t have to pay prevailing wage. Ms. Collins said risk is on
contractor, not on you. But the cost is on you.

Doug Kobold, CPSC said when he ran Yolo County landfill, he found an obscure Public
Resources Code in regard to landfill maintenance and Operation. In that code, it said the landfill
operation is not subject to the Public Contract Code. Mr. Beck cautioned that it probably
doesn’t exempt it for labor code. Mr. Wylene noted it may be an exemption from bidding in
contract code and not necessarily prevailing wage in the labor code.

22



B. County Operations Presentation

Jim McHargue, Director of Solid Waste, Amador County, gave a presentation on outreach and
education that he conducts about the state of solid waste and recycling for schools. The main
purpose of the presentation is to get kids thinking.

C. Report from CalRecycle

Julie Trueblood with CalRecycle gave an update on CalRecycle. Finishing 2019 site visits for
review cycle, they look at 5 areas of diversion: commercial, residential, construction,
demolition, internal government programs, and household hazardous waste. Butte and Shasta
were close to hiring somebody, so we’ll be doing Fall visits. CalRecycle have brought on Jeffory
McDaniel, has Mono, Inyo, Madera and Mariposa counties. Bear with us if we have follow-up
questions in some areas. This time around we touched on AB 1594, alternative daily cover. As
of January 1, 2020, green waste will count as disposal not as diversion. We're asking how
you're planning for that, RDRS, reporting system, your county coordinator is off the hook. Will
now come from transfer processors. SB 1383 regs had a second 15 day comment period. The
final draft will be coming out in September, will go to Office of Administrative Law. January is
our one-yéar mark. Funding—farmer and ranch cleanup program is undersubscribed.
Application date is open until November 7t. Tire grants are due October 31st. Tire incentive
program is-due October 2214, there is $3.5 million available. Greenhouse Gas program and
RMDZ loan program applications are due. Next public meeting is August 20th public, then
September 17th,

VI. Legislative Update

John Kennedy, Legislative Affairs Advocate for RCRC, provided a legislative update.
Said we just came back from summer recess, in the final stretch. The vast majority are
in Appropriations or on the Floor, then it’s off to the governor. The following bills
were summarized:

AB 187 by Assemblymembers Cristina Garcia and Frank Bigelow; used mattress recovery
and recycling act.
* Makes a number of governance and management changes of the mattress program.
We were interested in expanding access: for consumer drop off in rural areas. One
location in each county, except Alpine. There was a problematic provision regarding
commercial hauling, it was removed. Would’ve required landfills to take free
mattresses if they got more than 1000 per year; that has also been removed. Focuses
on what happens to MRC if they’re decertified—had issues with other stewardship
programs.
e Steve Rodowick, Butte County, said regarding pursuing expanded collection, there’s
not enough processing capacity.

23




AB 815 by Assemblymember Aguiar-Curry; dual stream recycling incentives.
¢ Very unconventional. Caused concerns with a number of jurisdictions, has intent
language to not withhold a good faith determination. With that, some organizations
‘have gone neutral. It is one step away from the Governor’s desk. -

AB 827 by Assemblymember McCarty; commercial and organic waste recycling bins.
e Thisis on Senate Third Reading. Generators, not full service restaurants, have to have
organic and recycling bins available to customers. Duplicative of SB 1383.

AB 1509 by Assemblymembers Mullin and Berman; lithium ion battery recycling bill.
e Lots of stakeholder interest to have proper collection and disposal and decrease risk.
Needs more work; made a two-year bill. Hopefully we have something new in January
or next year.

AB 1583 by Assemblymember Eggman; California Recycling Market Development Act.

e Some groups, including RCRC, trying to hold this bill open for generator fee. It
eliminates chasing arrow symbols, still have code. Extends for 10 years market
development zone and CAEAFTA [California Alternative Energy and Advanced
Transportation Financing] program. Only bill alive that extends sunset date for
CAEAFTA program. CAEAFTA is sales and use tax exclusion for manufacturing
equipment. Tesla is a big beneficiary. My understanding is UAW weighed in and now
opposes due to Tesla because its non-union. Interesting case study of politics and
missed opportunities. RCRC strongly supports the bill.

SB 68 by Senator Galgiani; treated wood waste.

o Heart of the bill repeals the sunset date of treated wood waste program. DTSC has a
huge structural deficit, mentioned in the budget the need for the Administration to
enhance revenue collection—like raising fees. These bills have an impact of DTSC’s
budget, even minor, but DOF is calling out the deficit to call for a veto of certain
legislation.

o Larry Sweetser said if this bill doesn’t go through, treated wood waste will have to
go to hazardous waste landfill. Big deal in that respect.

e Broad coalition of support.

SB 667 by Senator Hueso; infrastructure, organic waste recycling,

o CalRecycle must develop a needs assessment to achieve SB 1383 mandates. RCRC is
supportive. Leverages the Treasurer for innovative financing mechanisms for
organics infrastructure. Cap and Trade appropriation didn’t happen, only got $25
million from budget. '

SB 726 by Assemblymember Caballero; household hazardous waste
e Primarily addresses smarter sorting for Household Hazardous Waste. DTSC had
some heartburn, we’'ve worked out language with CPSC.
o Doug Kobold, CPSC, clarified that you can have a re-use program and send material
out to a third party. Clarify with CUPA and DTSC. DOF is the only entity opposed.

24



AB 1080/SB 54, by Assemblymember Gonzalez-Fletcher and Senator Allen, respectively;
plastic single use packaging. '

* Seek to require manufacturers to reduce waste generated from single use packaging
by 75% by 2030. Impose requirements on priority plastic, has to achieve recycling
targets; it is a rates and dates bill. Some exemptions for pharmaceuticals, pesticide
packing. Concern over food packaging and FDA approval. Trying to work with
authors to address lingering concerns, such as making the bill focus on applying to
manufacturers only, not local jurisdictions. CalRecycle will have to define recyclable
and compostable. Local governments will have to respond to CalRecycle doing this.
Amendments would make it voluntary for local governments to provide this
information to CalRecycle. Fear is that manufacturers have no comprehension of end
cycle of their products. They’re going to come to us, we'll have to do segregations of
products at MRFs. Thatll be impossible. Self-certification process from
manufacturers is being considered. Lots of details to flesh out. Talking about funding
to CalRecycle, like deposits. Carefully monitoring, heavily involved in negotiations.

* Tedd Ward, Del Norte County, feels like this is important for packaging engineers be
trained. Mr. Kennedy said it speaks to other problems, like replacing cardboard boxes
with new packaging materials that have to be dealt with like plastic shopping bags.
Don’t want product substitutions to be even less recyclable that what we already
have.

Lastly, the Bottle Bill. Re-planet just closed the last of their facilities. Bottle bill is a perineal
end of session play. Have 4 weeks to try something and figure out what that is. Need to
increase consumer convenience, otherwise it’s a regressive tax. Moving towards increased
payments for low-volume recyclers to increase infrastructure. Streamlining CalRecycle
process to certify new recycling centers. People don’t want broad reform of CalRecycle right
now, need to get it right in a longer process.’

Finally, the generator fee, need mechanism for minimum payments for local jurisdictions to

comply with SB 1383. Not clear this will move forward in the next 4 weeks, but perhaps next
year to meet our mandates.

Steve Rodowick, Butte County, said the bottle bill, cross-state movement is a problem. Are
there talks of multi-state pact? Mr. Kennedy replied no, there are no talks going on about that
that he’s aware of. CalRecycle is trying to ramp up inspections and enforcement. They’ve had
some eye opening fines and penalties against some bad actors.

VIl. Member County Concerns/Comments
No comments or concerns were raised.

VIII.  Solid Waste/Regulatory Update

A. CalRecycle
* AB 901 Recycling and Disposal Reporting Regulations

25



Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant, said we're in the midst of it. Have to start tracking the
information, lots of confusion over what to track. Getting questions from service providers
to understand the system. Have one more quarter under the old system. Next annual report
is going to have a little bit of both of the tonnage. A test drive of new session is coming up on
the 26th. Tehama county will be the guinea pigs to test it, iron out wrinkles. You're charged
with coming up with different information, suggests tracking everything and then figure it
out later during reporting. Don’t want missed loads. You do have some flexibility. Will have
to figure out scale issues, got a scale exemption. Keep the questions coming. check in with
your service providers. Heard from one county that their hauler refused to register. That'll

be interesting.

B. State Water Resources Control Board
o Landfill PFAS Orders

Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant, said the new part of that is legislation was passed for
public drinking water testing. Effects leachates, not landfills. New public tool with mapping.
So far the paranoia haven’t come true. For those of you not ordered to test, its coming. Going
to become standard.

Don Renz, Shasta County, asked about load check program, testing for Teflon. Mr. Sweetser
said some of the sampling equipment has Teflon. It's very challenging.

Tom Valentino, Lassen County, asked what is going to happen with this, and testing is over
the threshold. Mr. Sweetser said he doesn’t know yet. Don’t want to think that far ahead. It's
a nationwide issue. California was behind on testing which is why it came up.

e Storm Water Industrial General Permit

Larry Sweetser said in your packet there is an opportunity for training on Monday at 9am. |
plan to be there in person. Good thing to listen into and take some notes.

C. Extended Producer Responsibility
e CA Product Stewardship Council Update

Doug Kobold, Executive Director, CPSC started off thanking ESJPA for contributions to move
us at CPSC along. Before he gave an update, he acknowledged Steve Rodowick. He’s had a
perfect attendance record for every meeting of our Board—including holiday parties. He's
been on our Board for three years, involved with our organization since 2012. Happy we get
to keep him on our Board. .

The following bills were highlighted:
e AB 1509: CPSC and Californians Against Waste are sponsors. Will be working
collaboratively to solve lithium ion battery, fires problem.
e AB 729: carpet bill. Need it to get through. Sad campaign against it, “get rid of the
carpet tax.”
e SB 424: e-cigarettes are a huge problem for Household Hazardous Waste handlers.
Want manufacturers to have a stake in this game and take these devices back.

26



* SB 726: Household Hazardous Waste bill.
Mattress bill. Want to make it productive and useful.
* AB1080/SB 54: both have new, substantial amendments as of yesterday.

Regarding SB 212 rulemaking, the informal draft regs looked pretty good. CalRecycle did a
good job on the first round. Should go on time and have an excellent statewide program.

DTSC formal rulemaking for solar panels started in April 2019, has to finish by April 2020.
Substantial changes are needed. Found out in October that DTSC doesn’t-have the authority
to do U.S. products, need authorization from Federal EPA. Finally, last month, put in their
request to U.S. EPA for authorization to designate solar panels as universal waste. Told that’s
a one year process after submittal of an application. Not sure if that authorization can occur
before April 2020 deadline.

Nate Pelczar, CPSC, spoke about DHCS, medicine bins. We have a grant placing 300 bins
across the state, if your jurisdiction wants one let me know. Taking applications,
takebackdrugs.org.

* Mattress Recycling Council Update

Liz Wagner, Special Projects Coordinator, Mattress Recycling Council said they turned in
their 2018 Annual Report to CalRecycle. Will be at public meeting on Tuesday, we’ll see what
their recommendation is. Rural counties have 78.5% access to a collection site or event,
75.7% of rural counties have access to a permanent collection within 15 miles; 93.2% have
access within 25 miles. Will continue to expand the network. We're hiring for a Central
California coordinator. Will help with access we can provide, please refer interested
candidates her way. Close to making Glenn county a permanent site. Have our second grant
cycle open for collection sites. Open to sites that aren’t operational yet. Expected to expand
our collection network and get sites to come on board. Still committed to expanding network
and get one site per county. Regarding processing capacity—not touched on in law. Have
enough capacity, but it's a matter of getting it where it needs to go.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County, said he appreciates what MRC is doing, to try to roll things out,
but we still don’t have daily collection. Access to events have expanded, but thinks MRC
should use money to pay the contracted amount directly, rather than through a grant. Ms.
Wagner replied that MRC wants to pay to cover costs, but we don’t want to pay higher rates
to cover revenue. It’s not a sustainable model statewide. Working hard to get permanent
sites.

e CARE Update
CARE representatives were absent.

¢ PaintCare Update
Daria Kent provided a PaintCare update. Said Washington state is onboard, exciting to go out

to bid. Regarding options for rural counties, they have most of transfer stations and landfills

27



on board. Trying to do site improvements at retail stores that are underserved. Want
upgrades to keep bins out of the elements—like sun and rain. One more aspect to help the
program run well. We asked that you get re-use invoices to us by August 1st. Upping
commitment to get more re-use. Open to ideas to expand your re-use area, please talk to your
coordinator.

Larry Sweetser mentioned in counties that have experienced fire, there has been a
receptiveness to get paint out to those communities. Vendors are willing to help out.

IX. ‘Agenda Suggestions, Member County Presentation Volunteer, Workshop
Topics for Next ESJPA Board Meeting Scheduled Thursday, October 17,2019.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County, suggested CRRA with SWANA workshops. We're having an
October 17t Workshop, status on legislation and next steps. Might be some interest in
making this the afternoon program, but it would not be located here. It is at CalRecycle
during the afternoon, time is to be determined. Staci Heaton, Program Manager, said she
would put the time and location of this meeting on the October agenda and defer the TAG

session.

Larry Sweetser suggested the application period for USDA grants, opening October 1%, Can
use that for various studies, training. Opportunity for counties. Maybe someone from USDA
can come, it’s a tricky process.

X. Articles of Interest
None referenced.
XI. Solid Waste/Regulatory Update, continued
A. CalRecycle, SB 1383 Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Regulations

Mary Pitto gave an overview of SB 1383 Regulations. Changes that were proposed did
respond to some of our concerns, but it also created some new problems. Route review went
from quarterly to annually, or can use a new alternative to require an extra collection run
and sorting area for random sampling, determine contaminants, which seems like it would
be more labor intensive, making route review the better option. New waiver until 2025 to
collect organic waste for residential, however, still on the hook for other requirements like .
monitoring, capacity planning, procurement, education and outreach. In the original packet,
they had extended exclusions for urban counties, upped those figures from 50 persons per
sq. mile to 75, and in census tracks from 5,000 to 7,500 persons in urban areas. Because
census tracks are so large, we asked them to allow jurisdiction to take out one area of census
tract that causes you to go over population thresholds. Asked that the 19 counties with 5-
year exemption be exempted from all program requirements. Doesn’t make sense to spend
time monitoring a third of the state, or 4% of the waste. They added bear exclusion, but not
for lower areas below 4500 feet. We've also suggested thatlocal jurisdictions can grant those
waiver requests, not CalRecycle. Still asked for the ability to apply for an exemption for
special circumstances. CalRecycle added in an exclusion from homeless encampment, illegal

28



dumping sites, quarantined materials. Don’t have to recycle, can dispose those. Language
requirements are a little stiff, asked them to revise with local public health departments.
There’s a problem with CalGreen standards and enforcing them. Added in model water
landscape ordinance too. Ties in with edible food recovery programs. Putting these in solid
waste division is inappropriate. We have no authority over these departments. Still asking
for reconsideration of that. Regarding capacity planning, they’re asking too much.
Procurement improvements were made, made a range of renewable natural gas. Don’t
believe they can mandate procurement. With enforcement, failure to provide staff resources
or sufficient funding is not considered substantial effort. The penalty section is concerning—
these are supposed to be goals and targets. That makes it a mandate. Besides that, nothing is
more angering than the penalties. States and Feds and schools get put on a list of shame, not
subject to penalties, for meeting their goals. Have a real hard time with them saying this is
notamandate on local governments. We’ve asked for performance-based goals in rural areas
that would exempt them from monitoring requirements; etc. On page 33, Attachment A are
specific comments, through page 44. On page 45 is the attachment of census information we
gave them. Attachment C is additional information on the bear habitat. These regulations are
comprehensive and cumbersome. We spent a lot of time on this, but every time we went
through it we found something else. It has been very overwhelming,

Tom Valentino, Lassen County, asked how our comments have been received. Ms, Pitto said
we haven’t heard back yet. But in the past, they’ve made attempts at some concessions. But
because of penalty section, it’s not going to be enough. Needs to be like AB 939 with good
faith effort, then it would be a goal that we’re working towards. Larry Sweetser added that
lack of funding is written in there that it's an excuse not to comply with the program. They’re
receptive to listening, understand the dilemma, but don’t want to lose the big picture. Ms.
Pitto said the issue is they’ve made a goal and its unattainable. They haven’t addressed that
you can’t build the facilities. Even if you'had the money to build it, you can’t permit them.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County, expressed this appreciation to this group on this effort. We
don’t have the time and ability to do these comments.

Greg Stanton, El Dorado County, asked where is material going to go? Ms. Pitto said its good
question. Even if you have the capacity and collect it, what happens to the end product?

Steve Rodowick, Butte County, asked if there are projections on our good efforts where we’d
end up? How many would end up subject to fines? Have we played out that scenario and
presented it to CalRecycle? Mr. Sweetser said we did that with the infrastructure study.
Curt Fujii said you can interpret what’s written to mean something else similar. Résponse is
not what’s intended, but we've seen good intentions go astray. Can we document their
intention? Mr. Sweetser said they have to write a statement of reasons, don’t know what’ll
be in the final one though.

Ms. Pitto added that Water Board retrofitting requirements are coming, Will shut down some
existing composting facilities.

29



Tedd Ward said the issue in our county is ranch land. Composted cow manure is $15 per
truckload. I can’t compete with that. Where’s my market?

Ms. Pitto said CalRecycle will respond to some of the comments and make some
clarifications.

B. Grant Program Update

Larry Sweetser gave a Grant Program update. Asked if everyone got their OPP reportin: Due
by midnight. TA4 is due at end of month. Did get TAS for Mariposa, Tuolumne, Inyo, Colusa,
and Sierra. Applied for USDA grant again. Mostly looking at rural area grants. We do training
and develop rural survival guide on organics management, like we did on other changes.
They wanted a few more documents, was difficult to apply during the government shut.
down. You may also want to apply for that. Lastly, also have 303 forms due for Hazardous
Waste. Have had a number of oil centers get told, when their tank is full, that they can’t get
rid of it. If you've had a staff change in the oil period, you may have missed the notice.

C. Highlights of July/August CalRecycle Meetings

Larry Sweetser gave an update of recent CalRecycle meetings. Said some got Household
Hazardous Waste grants for next cycle (Del Norte, Siskiyou). Tehama, Glenn, Mariposa is on
the wait list. Approved funding for local conservation corps. They're getting funding from the
state, closest one for Northern California is in Sacramento. They went out to Trinity for a few
days for a tire event. They can help take some things off your plate and be useful. It's a lot of
money out there we may be able to take advantage of. GGRF funding allocations, had $13
million and $25 million for organics grant, organics grant, etc. for FY 18-19 and 19-20. Not
sure about rural set aside. Workshop on illegal disposal, farm and ranch clean up. Getting
funding and being eligible for illegal dump clean up: Tedd Ward said it helps fund their code
enforcement officer. Finally, Mr. Sweetser said an upcoming meeting has a workshop on EIR
for 1383. MCR annual report is due. Had an interesting conversation on definition of rural.
No fixed definition, tried to reach a commonality.

D. Other Regulatory Announcements /Issues of Interest
e CalRecycle In the Loop
e Cal EPA CUPA Newsletters
Jim McHargue referred to the information listed in the Board packet.
Xil. Adjournment -was called at 1:45 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Leigh Kammerich, Regulatory Affairs Specialist

30



m R“r al Countles CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY
. ] i VICE CHAIR — DENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY
o = Environmental Services EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ~ GREG NORTON

f & joint Powers Authority

. TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUF (TAG)
' TAG CHAIR — JIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY
ESI PA TAG VICE CHAIR — TODD STORTI, BUTTE COUNTY
: PROGRAM MANAGER — STAC] HEATON

Rural Counties’ Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority
Board of Directors’ & Technical Advisory Meeting
Rural County Representatives of California Board Room
1215 K St., 16t Floor

Sacramento, CA 95814

Thursday, June 20, 2019
MEMBERS REPRESENTED
Jim McHargue, Director Amador County
Todd Storti, Deputy Director Butte County
Denise Carter, Supervisor Colusa County
Michael Azevedo, Assistant Director Colusa County
Tedd Ward, Director Del Norte County
Lori Parlin, Supervisor El Dorado County
Talia Richardson, Manager Glenn County
Lars Ewing, Public Services Director Lake County
Ahmad Alkhayyat, Director Madera County
Sam Cerveny, Manager Mariposa County
Justin Nalder, Superintendent Mono County
Bob Perrault, Director. Plumas County
Michael Kobseff, Supervisor Siskiyou County
Rachel Ross, Agency Manager Tehama County
Diane Radar, Deputy Director Trinity County
Gretchen Olsen, Solid Waste Manager Tuolumne County
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE
Stacy Heaton, Program Manager Rural Counties ESJPA,
Larry Sweetser, ESJPA Consultant Sweetser and Associates, Inc,
John Kennedy, Legislative Affairs RCRC Governmental Affairs
Leigh Kammerich, Regulatory Affairs Specialist RCRC Governmental Affairs
Mary Pitto, Regulatory Affairs Advocate RCRC Governmental Affairs
Elizabeth Jensen, Accountant RCRC
Sanjay Lee, Accountant RCRC
GUEST SPEAKERS
Joe Rasmussen, CalRecycle
Nate Pelczar, CPSC

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, EL. DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO,
NEVADA, FLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215 KSTREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHOI\'S_1 2164474806 FAX: 916447-1667 WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG



Heidi Sanborn, CPSC
Michael LaRussa, MRC
Lisa Mekis, CARE
Nichole Dorr, PaintCare

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE

Diane Green, Solid Waste Technician Tuolumne County
Steve Rodowick, Coordinator Butte County
David Garcia, Program Manager Nevada County
Eric Miller, Manager Butte County

Cap Aubry, Superintendent Inyo County

Kati Galvani, Deputy Director Lake County

Lavell Waiwaiole, Coordinator

Calaveras County

Curt Fujii Fujii Civil Engineering
Spencer Five CalRecycle
John Duke CalRecycle
Willie Carpenter CalRecycle
Ward Danner CalRecycle
Roberta Jetter CalRecycle
Howard Levenson CalRecycle

L. Call to Order, Self-Introductions, and Determination of Quorum

Supervisor Kobseff, ES]PA Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:01am. A quorum
was determined. Self-introductions were made.

II. Business Matters

Discussion and possible action related to the following:

A. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting of March 14, 2019

Supervisor Kobseff, ESJPA Chair, called for the approval of the minutes from the
March 14, 2019 meeting. The motion to approve the minutes was made by Jim
McHargue from Amador County, and seconded by Tedd Ward from Del Norte
County.

. Review and Approval of the Independent Auditors’ Report and Financial
Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Elizabeth Jensen, Accountant for RCRC and Sanjay Lee, Accountant for RCRC
gave an overview of a financial audit for the last year and received a clean audit.
Mr. Lee said the ESJPA had a great fiscal year, had high activity. ESJPA operates
two grants, a tire grant and oil grant. The grant activity detail can be found in the
agenda packet. ESJPA is at 162% revenue. In comparison to 2017, grant
spending was up but administration costs were down. Mr. Lee said that was the
biggest change overall.

32



II1.

IV,

Tedd Ward from Del Norte County said things are working in the right direction.
He moved for approval on the Independent Auditors’ Report and Financial
Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2018. Gretchen Olsen, Tuolumne
County seconded. The motion was approved.

Public Comment

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County requested the possibility to have an online webinar or
dial in phone number to benefit to the group. Face to face meetings are ideal, but there
are situations where we can’t attend the meeting due to travel. Staci Heaton, Program
Manager, responded that the ESJPA would have to explore Brown Act issues. Arthur
Wylene, RCRC General Counsel, said there are good reasons to do it, it can be done,
but there would be lots of complications. Mr. Ward would like a written explanation
on the thought process on this policy.

Jim McHargue, Amador County, sits on the Mattress Recycling Council (MRC) Advisory
Committee and went through this very thing to make sure Brown Act being followed.
MRC has the ability to participate remotely. But there are initial hurdles.

Gretchen Olsen, Tuolumne County, agrees that if her other staff could dial in they
would benefit from the information. Said it would be wonderful to expand that.

Presentations

A. Prevailing Wage Listening Session and Development of Questions for August
ESJPA Board Meeting

Larry Sweetser introduced Arthur Wylene, General Counsel for RCRC and said this
topic came out of discussions about a new prevailing wage case.

Mr. Wylene said the purpose of today is not to give a presentation, it is to have a
guided conversation on what prevailing wage is and to gather questions for a
future presentation. Prevailing Wage shall be paid to workers on public works. -
The Labor code has a detailed definition of public works. Every word and comma
has been litigated, and all have a hidden meaning. Prevailing Wage applies to
contracts for maintenance work—routine and recurring. It’s a broad definition
and there is a great deal of potential dispute. Volunteer work was a litigated issue,
but the Legislature stepped in in the early 2000s. Prevailing Wage protects
employees from substandard wages. Real purpose of Prevailing Wage and why it’s
a sacred cow is that it allows union contractors to compete with non-union
contractors by leveling the playing field for union contractors. That is the filter
through which Prevailing Wage gets set. The Department of Industrial Relations
will take the union wage scale and call that the prevailing wage, but it does not
necessarily reflect the Prevailing Wage in a given community. The Legislature is
very protective of Prevailing Wage. The general motive is to expand it, not to
contract it. That is the general trend and what we see. Lots of potential application
to solid waste, like maintenance of a piece of equipment at a landfill. Important
thing for our perspective is how fact specific these are. The nuances of a project is

33




going to drive if Prevailing Wage applies—what kind of sorting, etc. Mr. Wylene
wanted to underscore that you should talk to county counsel on these issues. The
general obligation falls on the contractor, but it comes back to the county.
Prevailing Wage will increase costs on the contract. And there is potential liability
for the contractor to come back for back wages and penalties and potentially sue
the county and say they are entitled to indemnification. Burden and liability can
come back to the county. What sparked the discussion at this point is a recent
court case, Kaanaana v. Barrett Business Services et al. Came as a bit of shock.
These sorting facilities would not otherwise be viewed as providing construction,
maintenance, etc., but what starts small as subsequent interpretation will result in
application of Prevailing Wage at county, city, and JPA landfills. Said we expect a
decision in 2020. CSAC, League of Cities and RCRC is working on this but it’s-an
uphill climb. LA Sanitation District will be here in August to give a better overview
and answer questions.

Todd Storti, Butte County, asked for clarification on public funds and fees for
service provided. In that instance, is ita gift of public funds? Mr. Wylene
responded that Prevailing Wage applies to work done under contract, not work
directly performed by county employees. Prevailing Wage Kicks in when the
county hires a contractor to perform public works. To your question, if you
contract out the facility and they receive funds from tipping fees, 1 will refer you to
other Counsel.

Todd Storti, Butte County followed up saying if that’s the case, what is the county’s
advantage to operating an enterprise fund? It’s not right that they use southern
California wages for the entire state.

Gretchen Olsen, Tuolumne County, said the machinery is constantly breaking
down and needs maintenance. Asks if there a ratio for doing these types of
activities.

Lars Ewing, Lake County, asked about curbside collection done under contract, is
there caselaw of curbside collection under contract? Arthur: There was an
Attorney General Opinion in the early 2000s dealing with transfer stations. Would
probably say it’s a good bet that that work did not trigger Prevailing Wage, but talk
to your Counsel.

Rachel: Therée was a question raised locally as to the applicability of prevailing
wages to Household Hazardous Waste programs. Arthur: will have to see what the
CA Supreme Court says. Stay tuned. -

Eric Miller, Butte County, mentioned trying to preserve working capital in the
Enterprise fund... let's say Prevailing Wage applies, how far downstream does it
apply? These are all commodities, they have values, some negative.

Larry Sweetser said he’ll add on to that question; what happens when it goes out
of state or out of the country?

34



Steve Rodowick, Butte County said the same with e-waste.

Curt Fujii asked, in order to protect themselves, does the county need to do
anything other than notify the contractor in writing? Mr. Wylene responded that
you also have to make sure the contractor pays prevailing wage. County counsel
has standard language.

Diane Rader, Trinity County said a good presentation would be about bits and
pieces. Design and engineering is an exception. What are the exceptions? Wants to
talk about all the ins and out. -

Eric Miller, Butte County inquired about Southern California rates and sent an
inquiry to DIR and haven’t gotten a response to have a Northern California rate.
‘Why does it take so long for DIR to make these determinations? Mr. Wylene
responded that there is a formal process to challenge Prevailing Wage rates on a
given project, but usually unions challenge that Prevailing Wage is too low, not too
high. DIR may think your inquiry is out of the formal process and doesn’t have to
answer.

. Recycling and Disposal Reporting System (RDRS, AB 901) Reporting

Steven Sander, Environmental Scientist with CalRecycle, gave a recap of a
presentation given on Tuesday in Southern California. Yesterday CalRecycle did
a webinar on detailed requirements. AB 901(2015) and AB 1103 (2016), revised
reporting requirements. With regard to implementation, registration period was
supposed to be done by May 31st. If you haven’t, please register at once. Direct
reporting will streamline the process, take burden off county staff from
compiling this information and submitting them to CalRecycle. Hope for more
accurate data, and have confidentiality of data from recycling. The Department
gave a one month grace period to register, the law said it was to end April 30th,
Reporting entities begin recording information on July 1,2019. Reporting due
dates are staggered, allow for waste flow. Lots of stakeholder engagement with
the regulated community. Next workshop is on July 8t at the CalEPA building in
Sacramento from 9am to 12pm. Will also be webcast for those that can't travel.

Larry Sweetser added that there will be some additional tracking information
and changes may need to be made to data collection. Jurisdictions are not going
to collect and submit their quarterly disposal information. The information will
come directly from the facilities to CalRecycle. Members should make sure when
you're looking at contracts that you have the same data they give CalRecycle.

Steve Rodowick, Butte County asked if disaster debris, starting July 1, will not be
considered disposal.

35




Steven Sander responded that CalRecycle will want disaster debris to be
reported, but not attributed to a jurisdiction of origin. There should be no need
to apply for the exemption.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County asked if those that have regulatory relief will
continue? Steven Sander said there are some relaxed requirements, but he can’t
speak to your particular circumstance.

Rachel Ross, Tehama County, said the presentation yesterday was very
informative. She is interested in the source sector and how to attribute that.
Steven Sander responded that you can use other methods, like billing records, or
truck routes. Happy to work with you to determine one. Larry Sweetser said you
might need a report from the hauler. '

Justin Nalder, Mono County, asked what the purpose is for the use of this
information? Is the intent to off-set tons per capita per year? Steven Sander
replied that the new data is not used to measure diversion. The legislative intent
is to allow direct reporting to get more granular data.

Curt Fujii asked if a franchise hauler delivers solid waste to a county landfill, who
has reporting obligation? '

Larry Sweetser answered that it’s the facility that reports, not the hauler. Also
noted one wrinkle is the lawsuit pending on these regulations.

C. Report from CalRecycle

Joe Rasmussen, CalRecycle, gave an overview of recent CalRecycle activities and
referred to a handout with more information, including upcoming public
meetings and grant opportunities. There is lots going on with SB 1383. He
provided weblinks to check out for more information. CalRecycle had a
workshop yesterday on June 18th. It kicked off the 15-day comment period for SB
1383. There is a Notice of Funding Availability for the tire program, and the farm
and ranch clean-up grant will have a Sacramento workshop on July 18t A rate
determination survey will take place on July 11t

V. Legislative Update
John Kennedy, Legislative Advocate for RCRC, provided a legislative update. He
started off with bad news that the biomass bills by Assembly members Mathis [AB

257] and Patterson [AB 343] stalled in Assembly Appropriations Committee. He
added that these issues may be incorporated into future wildfire conversations.

The following bills were summarized:

AB 1236 by Assembly member Lackey, public resources/greenhouse gases.

36



* This would’ve been helpful for a programmatic EIR from CalRecycle to
permit organic waste composting facilities. Hopeful that it will come back in
future discussions.

SB 724 by Senator Stern, bottle bill.
* Would've given substantial relief to grocers. Would've also given low-volume
and rural recycling relief. But the state budget did include $5 million for low-
volume recycling.

AB 187 by Assembly members Cristina Garcia and Frank Bigelow, mattress
collection.

e This bill responds to an audit that there weren’t adequate convenience
options. Trying to improve the program with safeguards, accountability, and
one permanent collection per county. The requirement for landfills to
participate if taking more than 1,000 mattress per year will be coming out of
the bill.

AB 815 by Assemblywoman Aguiar-Curry, diversion requirements
* This is the genesis of the Glass Packaging Institute. The author is trying to
incentivize dual stream recycling systems, causing concerns with solid waste
haulers. Recent amendments clarify that CalRecycle can’t use the absence of
dual stream collection against a jurisdiction.

AB 1080 by Assemblywoman Gonzalez-Fletcher and SB 54 by Senator Allen, single
use packaging.
¢ Thisis aresponse to China’s National Sword, marine debris and pollution.

Requires manufacturing and retailers to recycle 75% of single-use packaging
by a date certain. Gives CalRecycle authority to determine what is recyclable
and what is compostable. Local governments do not bear the responsibility,
though we did when it was first introduced. This bill is considered a “job
killer” by CalChamber. Needs to be clarified further; for example, CalRecycle
can ask local governments for recyclable info and have the burden to
respond. CalRecycle given a lot of discretion, which makes industry
uncomfortable.

AB 1509 by Assembly members Mullin and Berman, lithium ion batteries
* This bill is meant to increase recycling and reduce improper disposal.
* Supervisor Kobseff suggested color coding the batteries.
* John Kennedy responded that some requirements are related to labeling, but
its hard to tell; we need to better distinguish those products.

AB 1583 by Assemblywoman Eggman, California Recycling Market Development Act
¢ This measure is trying to deal with National Sword and SB 1383 (organics
waste). It would eliminate arrow symbols. Major things include sunset date
extension for sales and use tax exemption for processing or recycled
feedstock. Also extends sunset date for market development zone program
from CalRecycle. Originally was going to be a vehicle for generator fee

37



VL.

discussion imposed on residents and at the commercial level, including self-
haulers. The current discussion (separate from AB 1583) is for $1.50 per
month per household, $2-$10 per month for commercial, and $0.50 for self-
haul. Funds would go to organic waste mandates, National Sword funding,
local government compliance, etc. The focus of the discussion is on where we
need to get to on SB 1383.

AB 1596 by the Assembly Committee on Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials.
¢ Cleanup of fentanyl contaminated properties based on the existing
framework for cleanup of methamphetamine-contaminated properties.

SB 68 by Senator Galgiani, treated wood waste.
e There is a fast approaching sunset date. This bill would remove that sunset
date.

SB 409 by Senator Wilk, illegal dumping
e This is the only illegal dumping bill still working its way through the
Legislature. Santa Clarita area response to an illegal dumper. Makes it illegal
to transport waste for illegal disposal.

SB 667 by Senator Hueso, recycling infrastructure
e Originally had Cap and Trade funds for recycling but that was removed.
Makes modest changes to get us where we need to get. Requires the state to
have innovative financing for organic facilities. State Treasurer Fiona Ma is
very interested in this.

SB 726 by Senator Caballero, hazardous waste. ,
e Larry Sweetser said this bill would clarify and broaden the ability to re-use
household hazardous waste products. DTSC has been very helpful in these
discussions. '

John added that there have been discussions with a Senate Committee on new solar
panels with shorter life expectancies. Asked that if you see a trend to please let him
know.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County, said he is very concerned about plastics in general,
but [AB 1080/SB 54] is not a circular economy bill and it shouldn’t be called that.
Also added that lithium ion batteries are a danger to us and our facilities.

Member County Concerns/Comments

Eric Miller, Butte County, gave an update on a landfill fee survey. He will send the
information Staci Heaton for distribution. Many members contributed to it and
many would like to see how they land.

Larry Sweetser said he sent out recycling survey and got 9 responses. There are
patterns. There’s numbers of orders of magnitude, hundreds of thousands of dollars

38



in some areas of increased costs of recycling. Even traditional recycling like paper
and metal are getting harder to market.

Tedd Ward, Del Norte County, spoké about how things have changed over time,
suggesting how haulers have changed the control over infrastructure, such as single
stream collection. Said Del Norte County no longer has a local processor.

Larry Sweetser said there are ripple effects when bottle centers close. Raises
tonnages statewide. Keep that in mind when reports are due about the impacts.

Gretchen Olsen, Tuolumne County said solid waste managers didn’t do a good job of
being honest about our rates and the rate structures. We hide that in our garbage
bills all the time and the public doesn’t understand.

Ahmed Alkhayyat, Madera County, said their franchise agreement said the county
gets no benefit or loss, now its costing their contractor a lot of money. They wanted
him to go to the Board and get a rate adjustment. The calculations is for 1.1% to be
added to the rate for one year, amounting to about $0.29 per month. The Board did
it even though they didn’t have to because they are acting within their contracted
time.

Larry Sweetser asked if anyone has not been approached by their contractor. Lars
Ewing, Lake County, responded that they raised their rate by adding a fee. It’s not
popular. Steve Rodowick, Butte County, lamented that the tipping fee has been a
$1.40 for a very long time. Increasing that would solve so many problems. Michael
Kobseff, Siskiyou County, said his recyclers can’t break even. Where is the material
going that they won’t recycle? Ahmed Alkhayyat said that's why we want a good
relationship with our haulers. Larry Sweetser asked how can we help to aggregate
some of this? Gretchen Olsen said fees at different locations.

Tedd Ward added that as long as you have a fuel-based economy, plastics will be
made. Fundamental thing does not go away. Can’t recycle our way out of the
problem. Will always going to have single-use plastics being shoved into our hands.
Until we change that basic system, that’'s what we've got.

VII. Solid Waste/Regulatory Update

A. CalRecycle
* 2019-20 Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund Budget Allocations

John Kennedy said there’s a long struggle here for SB 1383 implementation.
As you know, Cap and Trade has brought in billions in revenues. There was a
concentrated effort from local governments to advocate for $100 million
from Cap and Trade for solid waste facilities. Had a tough fight, stakeholders
were pleasantly surprised when the Senate included $7 5 million for organics
recycling; we were asking for $100 million. Ultimately it was pared down to
$25 million, the same amount the Governor initially proposed in his January

39



budget. But we've raised a lot of awareness in the Capitol as to how much this
costs. Several Senators made this their top priority.

SB 1383 Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Regulations

Mary Pitto reported that a revised draft to the SB 1383 regulations was
released Monday afternoon, with a workshop held on Tuesday. Comment
period opened yesterday. To summarize, the changes include reduced
collection review frequency from quarterly to annually. There was a delay
regarding containers color standardization; changed from yellow to brown
color. Did change to green and grey or blue and grey, not blue and green
containers. Property owners needing to notify tenants yearly was removed
for single-family homes. Increased city population and census track waiver
density. This may not take care of the problem, said we will try to raise the
threshold some more, or do a block group area. Will continue to look into
options for that. Calrecycle added in an elevation waiver for bears, but it did
not include the requested provision to allow locals to apply if they have bears
but are under 4500 feet. CalRecycle made it very clear that the comments we
can make can only be on the changes to their draft. We cannot complain
about things that they didn’t change. They did add emergency circumstances,
provisions exempting debris from homeless encampments or quarantined
from Agricultural restrictions. Performance based source collection service;
provided an alternative to the requirements. You are required to do a lot to
be exempted out of a lot. Asked to let her know if this is slightly able to
achieve. Regarding education and outreach, revised requirements to allow
print or electronic media. For non-English speakers, there are two
thresholds: less than 10,000 people has to be available online in their
language and noticed in the print media. Greater than 50,000: written
material required for that language. For publicly owned treatment works
they deleted handling of biosolids and sludge. Edible food recovery—
commercial generators must recover unless extraordinary circumstances.
County will have to increase the county capacity.

Rachel Ross asked about prisons and tribes. What do we do when we don’t
have authority over them?.

Larry Sweetser mentioned there is a lot to digest. Look at what CalRecycle is
going to do under their scenarios.

Mary Pitto further added that they are still holding counties responsible on
capacity. Added to requirement of CalGreen, added water efficiency
ordinance, don’t through the building department. Want jurisdictions to
adopt enforceable mechanism in order to fine the county. Will allow use of
local waste characterization study.

Larry Sweetser mentioned local waste characterization study are allowed but
are only good until CalRecycle’s next state-wide study.

40



Mary Pitto continued that one of the things on procurement, we asked not be
included in regulation. It's still in the regs, but they did modify some things
like changes the amount of .07 to .08 organic waste per resident per year.
Larry Sweetser provided a handout on these calculations. Allow renewable
natural gas and others, not just diesel. Reporting requirements, moved the
first report to April 1, 2022 from Feb 1. Deleted portion of first report when
containers will be in compliance. On enforcement, conduct an annual review,
add a study, changed violations to offenses. Deleted daily fine, second offence
within one year. Corrective action plans, if its issued due to inadequate
capacity, it’s up to another 12 months. Revised penalty calculations, based on
what percentage you procured.

Tedd Ward said this is going to hit us with a lead boot, caught between bad
choices. Unrealistic to have 15 days to review this. But he likes the ideaofa
program EIR. Supervisor Kobseff asked how we pause the march for SB 1383.
Staci Heaton offered to send a letter requesting a comment letter deadline
delay; this is not even good APA compliance. David Garcia, Nevada County,
said staffing and enforcement alone will be a nightmare and it can’t be done.

Mary Pitto finished her overview by adding that requirements for solid waste
facilities replaced daily sampling with quarterly periods. Need to sample 10
consecutive days. CalRecycle eliminated daily load checking requirements for
contamination but added grey container waste evaluations based on tonnage.
A requirement was added to allow for LEAs to monitor the evaluations. LEAs
no longer need to observe sample measurement. Eliminated 36-inch soil
requirements. That's one good thing. We’ll get a letter out asking for more
time to review. The ESJAP/RCRC will send in a comment letter and provide a
summary at the next meeting. For 70,000 or less population, you have until
2025 to comply with the collection of organics. Going to send out another
survey for SB 1383 infrastructure information. Also following up with a
phone call to all of you. We need to start planning for implementation. Please
take the time to fill out the survey.

AB 901 Recycling and Disposal Reporting Regulations

Larry Sweetser did not have anything to add to Steven Sander’s earlier
presentation. He said CalRecycle will take late registration if you haven'’t
done so already.

SB 212 Draft Regulatory Concepts

Leigh Kammerich said written comments are due July 15t on the Informal

Draft Regulatory Text. The ESJPA submitted comments in February before
the draft text was released, but will be re-submitting comments.

B. State Water Resources Control Board

Landfill PFAS Orders

41




Larry Sweetser indicated that members are proceeding with the required
sampling. There have been no new developments. He said those
jurisdictions that haven’t received an order to sample yet receive one in the
future '

o Compost Waste Discharge Requirements

Larry Sweetser said there was a workshop on the Environmental Impact
Report on proposed changes to the Compost WDR. Facilities will be allowed
to take herbivore manure at lower thresholds and there will be allowances
for agricultural properties to accept and provide compost.

C. Department of Toxic Substances Control
e Photovoltaic Modules/Solar Panel Regulations

Larry Sweetser said these are the Universal Waste regulations are being
proposed and the ESJPA provided comments. Regulations are expected to be
adopted by the end of the year or early next year.

D. California Department of Food and Agriculture Weigh Scale Issue

Larry Sweetser said only a couple of counties are experiencing inspection that
limit the amount of loads that can be weighed. Doesn’t seem to be enforced
anywhere else except Tehama County. Lassen County was exempt since they
operate their own scales.

E. Extended Producer Responsibility
e CA Product Stewardship Council Update

Heid Sanborn gave a general update on grants for gas cylinders. Shasta
county got concerned about safety of a gas cylinder grant which was
subsequently cancelled. If you have concerns, let them know first. CPSC did a
popular webinar on solar panel recycling with a great insert with Butte
County. Have a project with DPH on tobacco waste, model ordinance. We're
eating a credit card’s worth of plastic waste a week. SB 424 by Senator
Jackson, JUUL now working with us to try to get more DTSC regs out of the
way. Similar to a Senator Caballero bill on your list to make it easier to use or
recycle household hazardous waste. We're becoming experts for companies
to come to us that say they want to do the right thing, can you get all these
rules out of the way. Get ready for a big battery debate next year. Have a
workshop next Thursday from 1pm to 4pm in Alameda. Asking counties to
pass ordinances on batteries, tobacco, and gas cylinders. Webinar tomorrow
on tobacco waste, model ordinances. Newsletter will go out on other
webinars. Washington state has first EPR bill for solar panels. National
stewardship action council—Dr. Joanne Brash got some work for Nike and
other name brands that want to change the tariffs in this country. Companies

42



want to use sustainable textiles but can’t because they can’t afford it. Want to
create market pull. Exciting project.

Nate Pelczar, Program Manager for CPSC, added that they received a $3
million grant from DHCS to put in drug bins and needs help to get the word
out. They pay for bin installation and servicing through 2020.

e Mattress Recycling Council Update

Michael La Russa, Program Coordinator for Mattress Recycling Council,
spoke about collection events that augment permanent collection network.
Alpine county, Camp Fire cleanup crews, Del Norte, Tahoe community clean
up event (annual), Glenn county, Trinity county. Have upcoming joint event
with PaintCare in Sonora. '

e CARE Update

Lisa Mekis, Senior Associate for Carpet America Recovery Effort, said 94
million pounds recycled in 2018. Collection network is growing. The need for
new products is growing. Required to have at least one drop off site per
county, but don’t have one in Colusa, Sierra, Nevada, Merced, and a few other
counties. They are working on pilot program in the greater Sacramento area
and Los Angeles, 9 drop off sites and new haulers in the greater Sacramento
area. Last year the drop off sites contributed 10% of that total. This year its
30%. Your contributions are making a difference.

e PaintCare Update

Nicole Dorr, Central California Regional Coordinator for PaintCare said the
big news is that we’re expanding in Washington State. Big win for product
stewardship. Lost Orchard Supply. But adding some retail locations backs.
Did Fresno, Yolo county site. Recruiting additional retail sites. If you're
interested in an event, please contact your regional planner. Focusing on re-
use. Having paint available for those who want to take paint, that's new.
Sending out a survey, what re-use looks like for your jurisdiction.

Tedd Ward suggested doing more with paint re-use during HHW event. Steve
Rodowick added with Paradise re-building, you could make paint available to
underinsured or uninsured during rebuilding projects.
F. Grant Program Update
Larry Sweetser said OPP 10 applications are due June 27th. TA4 ends August
30th. On July 18th, CalRecyle will have a farm and ranch clean-up program

workshop seeking input for program improvements.

G. Highlights of April/May/June CalRecycle Meetings

43



CalRecycle continues to report on jurisdictions that are late to DRS reporting.
Larry Sweetser is keeping tabs on compliance orders. CalRecycle is dropping the
e-waste fees to keep the funding stable. Collection of CRT continue to decrease in
volume requiring changes to the fund, The new fee will be one dollar less per
unit size. The Future of E-waste project is continuing but there are no new
developments.

H. Other Regulatory Announcements/Issues of Interest
Nothing was announced.

VIII. Agenda Suggestions, Member County Presentation Volunteer, Workshop
Topics for Next ESJPA Board Meeting Scheduled Thursday, August 15, 2019.

No topics or agenda suggestions were made.
IX. Articles of Interest
No articles were referenced.
X. Resolution of Appreciation
ESJPA Chairman Michael Kobseff presented a proclamation from the Board of the
ESJPA to Mr. Howard Levenson of CalRecycle, recognizing his distinguished career
and congratulating him on his impending retirement.

XI. Adjournment -was called at 1:18pm

Respectfully submitted,
Leigh Kammerich, Regulatory Affairs Specialist

44



Rlll‘al Cﬂunties CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY

. . VICE CHAIR — DENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY
Environmental Services EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON !

Joint Powers Authority
TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)

TAG CHAIR ~ JIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY

ES PA TAG VICE CHAIR — TODD STORTI, BUTTE COUNTY
PROGRAM MANAGER ~ STACI HEATON

ESJPA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2020 MEETING CALENDAR
Thursday, March 12th RCRC Conference Room
Thursday, June 18st RCRC Conference Room
Thursday, August 13h RCRC Conference Room
Thursday, October 15t RCRC Conference Room
Thursday, December 10th RCRC Conference Room

** Note: Board of Directors meetings are anticipated to be held from 9:00 a.m. to noon,
with a Technical Advisory Group session to follow at 1:00 p.m. Lunch is provided.

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, EL. DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO,
NEVADA, FLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215 K STREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONE: 916-447-4806 FAX: 916-447-1667 WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG



46



Rural Countles CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY
Environmen tal S EI'Vi Ces VICE CHAIR — DENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY

X 3 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR —~ GREG NORTON
Joint Powers Authority

4 DN oo 1 TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)
= \ TAG CHAIR — JIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY
ES] PA TAG VICE CHAIR ~ TODD STORTI, BUTTE COUNTY

§
P

PROGRAM MANAGER —~ STAC! HEATON

MEMORANDUM

To: ESJPA Board of Directors

From: Lisa McCargar, RCRC Chief Financial Officer
Milena De Melo, RCRC Controller

Date: December 2, 2019

RE:  ESJPA Budget - FY 2020 (Action)

The proposed 2020 Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority (ESJPA) Operating
Budget constitutes our continued commitment to the core functions of providing solid waste
planning, solid waste services, regulatory advocacy, and other environmental services. The
proposed ESJPA budget for the 2020 calendar year is attached.

Summary

To better understand the budget, it is necessary to understand the inter-relationship
between the ESJPA and Rural County Representatives of California (“RCRC”). ESJPA and
RCRC are two separate legal entities, each with their own by-laws and Board of Directors.
RCRC is a non-profit mutual benefit corporation with a Board of Directors consisting of
County Supervisors who are representatives of the 37 participating counties. The ESJPA,
however, is a governmental agency with a Joint Powers Agreement. The Board of Directors
of ESJPA consists of delegates (or designated staff “alternates”) from the 24 member
counties. ESJPA does not employ staff, but instead contracts with RCRC to provide manage-
ment, technical, and administrative services as directed by the ESJPA delegates. This
contract is subject to annual review and follows the budget on today’s agenda.

The proposed ESJPA budget includes total revenues of $260,830, proposed expenditures of
$258,320, and results in a budget surplus of revenues over expenses of approximately
$2,510 for the year ending December 31, 2020.

Revenues

ESJPA’s proposed 2020 revenue includes $130,800 in membership dues. ESJPA’s 2020
revenue also includes grant reimbursements in the amount of $130,000, an increase of
$50,000 from the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase is a result of higher

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO,
NEVADA, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215 KSTREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONF 916-447-4806 FAX: 916447-1667 WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG
47 .




anticipated reimbursements related to the Tire Amnesty Grant. The following is a list of
current grant activities that are included in the CY 2020 budget.

= CalRecycle Used 0il Block Grants (Alpine, Colusa, and Mariposa Counties)
» CalRecycle Local Government Waste Tire Amnesty Grant (Colusa, Inyo, Mariposa, Sierra,
and Tuolumne Counties)

Expenditures
The proposed 2019 ESJPA expenditure budget is designed to provide the resources

necessary to carry out core functions. The most significant budgeted expenditures are those
associated with grant activities. Grant expenses of $130,000 are reimbursable and therefore
approximate grant revenues. As described above, anticipated services related to the Tire
Amnesty grant increase by $50,000.

Other non-grant related expenses include RCRC Contract Services in accordance with the
Board approved ESJPA/RCRC Agreement. As noted above, ESJPA staffing and other allocated
expenses are reflected in the $89,000 contract fee to RCRC. This is an increase of $23,000
compared to 2019 budget, primarily due to an allocation of additional RCRC staff whose focus
is regulatory analysis and compliance. Other expenditures include ESJPA’s share of rent,
auditing, and insurance costs.

Other Items ,
From time to time, ESJPA experiences cash shortfalls due to the timing of grant

reimbursements. While the current year operating budget reflectsa surplus of revenues over
expenditures, in 2015, the RCRC Board provided a standing short-term revolving loan facility
to ESJPA of up to $100,000. This standing facility remains in effect until cancelled.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the ESJPA Board adopt the 2020 ESJPA Budget as shown on the

following page.

48



ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
FY 2020 BUDGET
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

) 2019 2019
.|Income: Budget Budget Change

Member County Dues . 130,800 130,800 0
Contracts-grants/projects 130,000 80,000 50,000 |.
Contribution from RCRC 0 ' 0 0
Interest _ 0 0 ' 0
Miscellaneous 30 v 50 (20)

Total Income 260,830 210,850 49,980
Expenditures: . :
Auditing 4,000 3,780 220
Community Relations 1,000 1,000 0
Conferences Attended by Staff 1,250 1,250 | 0
Contract Support Services 89,000 66,000 . 23,000
Delivery Services 1,000 1,000 0
Dues, Fees and Subscriptions 2,000 2,000 | 0
Equipment & Furniture 250 250 0
Grants and Contracts ' 130,000 80,000 50,000
Insurance 6,500 6,600 (100)
Legal Fees 1,000 1,000 0
Meetings 6,000 6,000 0
Board Member Travel and Reimbursements 2,000 2,000 .0
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 0
Office Expense 500 | 500 0
Off-site Storage _ 1,320 1,320 0
Rent ' 7,000 ' 7,000 0
Training ' 3,000 3,000 0
Travel-Employees - 1,500 1,500 0

Total Expenditures 258,320 185,200 73.120

Net Revenues over Expenditures 2510 25,650 | (23,140)

11/22/20193:42 PM
49



50



Ru I‘al CO llntles CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFE, SISKIYOU COUNTY
R » A% . D
Enwronmental SEI'VICES ICE CHAIR — DENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON
Joint Powers Authority . e
TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)

: TAG CHAIR —.JIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY
E S ] PA TAG VICE CHAIR — TODD STORTI, BUTTE COUNTY

PROGRAM MANAGER — STACI HEATON

MEMORANDUM

To: ESJPA Board of Directors
From: Staci Heaton, Program Manager
Date: December 2, 2019

RE:  ESJPA - RCRC Contract Services Agreement - CY 2020 (Action)

The proposed ESJPA - RCRC Contract Services Agreement for the 2020 calendar year is
shown on the following pages and is presented for your consideration and approval.

The purpose of this agreement is to provide personnel services for technical and grant-
related ‘activities. RCRC will continue to provide technical and grant-related personnel
services to the ESJPA. The terms and conditions of the 2020 contract have changed slightly
from the 2019 contract with the addition of support from RCRC staff, which increased
slightly. The ESJPA will pay RCRC $89,000 this coming year out of the membership dues for
direct ESJPA activities.

The Agreement also provides that the ESJPA will pay RCRC for reimbursable grant-related
activities (principally staff time) on a per hour basis calculated monthly. This amount
includes direct and indirect personnel costs consistent with the terms and conditions of each
grant or contract ESJPA is assigned to implement on behalf of participating member
jurisdictions.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the ESJPA Board adopt the 2020 ESJPA - RCRC Contract Services
Agreement. §

ALFINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL. NORTE, EL DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO,
NEVADA, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215 KSTREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHOI'\é'-i' 9164474806 FAX: 916-447-1667 WEB: WWW.ESJPA ORG

!l






AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), dated as of January 1, 2020, is entered into by and
between the Rural Counties' Environmental Services Joint Powers Authority, a joint powers
authority organized and operated under Articles 1-4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title I
(commencing with Section 6500) of the California Government Code (hereinafter "ESJPA"), and
the Rural County Representatives of California, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation
(hereinafter "Contractor").

RECITALS
WHEREAS, ESJPA desires to obtain the services of Contractor; and,

WHEREAS, Contractor is competent and willing to provide such services to ESJPA,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained
herein, ESJPA and Contractor (each a "party," or collectively, the "parties") agree as follows:

1. Contractor's Services.

Contractor shall perform the services described herein and otherwise as specified
in Exhibit A hereto which is incorporated herein by this reference, under the supervision of
ESJPA's Contract Manager. Contractor understands that ESJPA may desire Contractor to
perform certain additional services related to the scope of services hereunder, and Contractor
agrees to perform such additional services when requested by ESJPA in writing. All such
additional services shall be performed as provided herein, unless otherwise provided by written
amendment hereto, subject only to an adjustment reflecting the cost of such additional services
and the time for performance.

2. Contractor's Personnel.

Contractor acknowledges that the personal services of Contractor's personnel are
essential to the performance of Contractor's obligations hereunder, and that no substitution of
Contractor's personnel so identified may be made without the prior written approval of ESJPA.
Contractor shall not subcontract or assign any portion of the services provided hereunder without
the prior written approval of ESIPA, except any subcontracted services identified in Exhibit A.

Contractor, and its agents and employees, in the performance of this Agreement,
shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, employees or agents of ESJPA. By
initialing this Agreement in the space provided immediately below, Contractor acknowledges
that this Agreement is complete, that it does not create an employer-employee relationship
between ESJPA and Contractor or any person performing services hereunder on behalf of

11/29/17

53



Contractor, and that this Agreement cannot and will not be modified by any oral representation
of employment.

Contractor's Initials:

Contractor further acknowledges that its taxpayer identification number is
94-1366200, and warrants that it is responsible for paying payroll or any other kind of taxes
resulting from compensation paid to Contractor hereunder.

3. Term.

This Agreement shall cover services rendered hereunder from January 1, 2020,
until the earlier of completion of Contractor's work hereunder, termination of this Agreement as
provided herein, or December 31, 2020, unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise extended
by mutual consent of both parties. Contractor specifically acknowledges that time is of the
essence with respect to completing its obligations hereunder, and that any failure to meet

deadlines provided herein will result in material damage to ESJPA.

4, Compensation.

~ For services described in Exhibit A as "Non-Grant Related," Contractor shall be
paid the sum of $7,583 per month which shall be deemed to include all reasonable actual
ordinary and necessary personnel expenses incurred for work performed hereunder.

For services described as "Grant Related" in Exhibit A, Contractor shall be
compensated in the amount of the actual cost of personnel provided, including direct salary,
benefits and related overhead expenses, all as specified in Contractor's invoices. However, if a
specific grant program ("Grant Program") that the Contractor is administering, hereunder, -
includes a limitation on the right of Contractor to receive compensation for overhead costs,
Contractor's compensation for such overhead costs shall be subject to the limitation specified in
the Grant Program. The actual overhead for each hour of work performed by Contractor under
this Agreement shall be the amount determined by Contractor's auditors, as adjusted from time-
to-time. Nothing herein shall preclude ESJPA from directly contacting granting authorities for
each Grant Program to seek the authority to modify any limitation on overhead compensation to
be charged against a Grant Program. '

Contractor shall submit invoices for services rendered and reimbursable expenses
incurred to date not more frequently than monthly for compensation and reimbursement of
allowable expenses. Approved invoices shall be paid by ESJPA within ninety (90) calendar days
of receipt of such invoices.

The fees provided in this paragraph shall be the entire compensation due
Contractor for these services and ESJPA shall not be liable for additional compensation for any
of Contractor's time or expense except as provided herein.

) 11/28/18

54



5. Work Product; Confidentiality.

Contractor understands and agrees that all documents, information and reports
developed in the course of performing its obligations hereunder shall be the property of ESIPA.
Contractor agrees to exert its best efforts in the production of such work product of this
Agreement. Contractor may retain copies of materials collected or produced hereunder during
the term hereof, but in the event of termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall promptly
deliver any such materials to ESJPA without exception or reservation.

If, in the course of performing its obligations hereunder, Contractor comes into
possession of information known or reasonably expected to be confidential information from any
source, Contractor will respect and maintain such confidentiality, whether under state, federal or
common law, and be solely liable to any injured person in the event of its wrongful distribution
of such confidential material.

6. Nonassignability.

No assignment of the rights nor delegation of the duties of Contractor whether in
whole or in part shall be valid unless specifically agreed to in writing by ESJPA.

7. Termination.

A. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the event the
other party defaults in performance, fails to perform services in a timely fashion, or otherwise
fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement. Either party's default or failure to perform
shall be excused if prevented by acts of God, labor disputes or strikes, or other forces beyond
such party's control.

B. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause or default after
having given thirty (30) calendar days notice to the other party which indicates which services
and/or expenses hereunder are suspended from the date of such notice and the date of
termination. Upon such termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for services
not suspended and actually rendered and/or expenses allowed to the date of termination and for
any unreimbursed expenses otherwise payable hereunder.

8. Attorney's Fees, Costs.

If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the terms of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs, in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. This provision for the recovery
of attorney's fees and costs shall be construed as applicable to the entire Agreement.

9. Indemnification and Insurance.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless ESJPA, its officers,
directors, agents, employees and attorneys, from any and all claims, causes of action, damages
and losses, whether in law or equity (collectively, "Claim") arising from or related to the
services performed by Contractor under this Agreement or accruing or resulting to any and all

3 11/28/18

55



contractors, subcontractors, matérialmen, laborers and any other person, firm or corporation
furnishing or supplying work, services, materials or supplies, in connection with Contractor's
willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions in the performance of Contractor's duties and
services hereunder.

ESJPA shall promptly notify Contractor of any Claim made in connection with
the performance of services rendered hereunder.

In order to ensure Contractor's obligations hereunder, Contractor shall maintain
insurance as follows:

(D Contractor shall maintain a commercial general liability insurance
policy in the amount of not less than $1 million per occurrence, and not less than $2 million in
the aggregate, from a carrier admitted in the State of California with a Best rating of not less than
A-,; VI

(2)  Comprehensive business or commercial automobile liability
coverage, including non-owned and hired automobile liability, in the amount of not less than
$1 million from a carrier admitted in the State of California with a Best rating of not less than A-,
VIIL

3) Worker's Compensation Insurance as may be required by the
California Labor Code for Coverage A (statutory limits) and not less than $1 million for
Coverage B (employer liability limits) from a carrier admitted in the State of California with a
Best rating of at least B+, VIII;

(4)  All such policies shall remain in force during the term of this
Agreement and shall be payable on a "per occurrence™ basis unless otherwise accepted in writing
by ESJPA, and shall be in form acceptable.to ESJPA and its insurance advisers. ESJPA shall be
named as an "additional insured" on any policy as may be requested by ESJPA and Contractor
shall provide certificates of insurance and any endorsements required signed by Contractor's
insurer prior to the commencement of Contractor's services hereunder. Any such policies or
endorsements shall provide for 30 days prior notice to ESJPA in the event of any termination or
reduction in coverage of such insurance.

(5)  Nothing contained herein shall be construed as or constitute a
limitation of Contractor's liability or Contractor's responsibility in law or equity to indemnify and
hold harmless from any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses that may arise by reason of
Contractor's willful misconduct or negligence, and all remedies provided hereunder shall be
cumulative with all other remedies under law or equity.

10. Jurisdiction and Venue,

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without
regard to choice of law if an action is brought in California based on activities outside California.
Any action to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement shall be brought in Sacramento
County, California.

4 11/28/18

56



11. Miscellaneous Provisions.

A. Partial Invalidity.

If any provision of this Agreement shall be declared invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall
not in any way be affected or impaired.

+

B. Contractor's Qualifications.

Contractor covenants that it is competent to provide the services required
hereunder and is licensed and qualified as necessary to perform such services in California
and/or as provided herein. Contractor covenants that it will comply with all applicable federal,
state and local laws affecting services provided hereunder.

C. Records and Audit.

Contractor shall maintain current and complete books and records relating
to this Agreement, including, but n6t limited to, documents supporting all bids, income and
cexpenditures. Books and records kept shall be original entry books with a general ledger
itemizing all debits and credits for work performed hereunder. In addition, where applicable,
Contractor shall maintain detailed payroll records including subsistence, travel and field
expenses, and canceled checks, receipts and invoices for all such items. Contractor's documents,
books and records shall be retained for at least five (5) years from the date of completion of this
Agreement, and Contractor shall permit access to audit its books, accounts and records relating
hereto, and such records of all business entitiés controlled by Contractor who participated in the
performance of this Agreemerit. Any audit by ESJPA may be conducted on Contractor's
premises, or at the option of ESJPA, Contractor shall provide all such records to ESJPA for such
audit elsewhere. Contractor shall refund any moneys erroneously paid; if Contractor has
erroneously billed for an amount exceeding five percent (5%) of the compensation paid
hereunder, Contractor shall also be liable for the cost of audit in addition to any other penalty.

D. Nondiscrimination Clause.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor shall not
unlawfully discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race,
religion, color, national origin, sex or sexual orientation, ancestry, physical handicap, medical
condition, marital status, or age (over 40).

E. Cooperation.

The parties shall cooperate with each other in the performance of their
respective obligations hereunder. ESJPA's Contract Manager shall be Staci Heaton or such other
person designated in writing by ESJPA. Contractor's representative for the purpose of any
approvals or requests made hereunder shall be Greg Norton.

5 11/28/18

57



F. Entirety, Amendments.

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, oral or in
writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all of
the covenants and agreements between the parties with respect to said matter, and each party to
this Agreement acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises, or agreements,
orally or otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which
are not embodied or referred to herein, and that no other agreement, statement, or promise not-
contained or referred to in this Agreement shall be valid or binding.

‘ This Agreement is entire as to all of the performances to be rendered
under it. Breach of any of the performances to be rendered by Contractor shall constitute a
breach of the entire Agreement and shall give ESIPA the right to terminate this Agreement.
ESJPA's breach of any of the obligations created by this Agreement shall constitute a breach of
the entire Agreement and give Contractor the right to terminate this Agreement.

No amendment or modification of the provisions of this Agreement shall
be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto. '

G. Disclosure.

Contractor agrees to make any necessary disclosures and filings required
of Contractor under the California Government Code, if applicable.

Any notice, tender, or delivery to be given hereunder by either party to the
other may be effected by personal delivery in writing or by mail, postage prepaid, and shall be
deemed communicated as of the date of actual receipt. Mailed notices shall be addressed as set
forth below, but each party may change its address by written notice in accordance with this

paragraph.

To Contractor: Rural County Representatives of California
1215 K Street, Suite 1650
Sacramento, California 95814
Attn: Greg Norton, President and CEO

To ESJPA: Rural Counties’ Environmental Services
Joint Powers Authority
1215 K Street, Suite 1650
Sacramento, California 95814
Attn: Staci Heaton, Program Manager

6 11/28/18

58



WHEREFORE, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth
above.

CONTRACTOR:

RURAL COUNTY REPRESENTATIVES OF
CALIFONIA, A CALIFORNIA NONPROFIT
MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION

By:

Greg Norton
President and CEO

ESJPA:

RURAL COUNTIES’ ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, A
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

By:

Michael Kobseff
ESJPA Board Chair

7 11/28/18

59



EXHIBIT A

Contractor shall provide professional, technical, administrative, and related support
services to the ESJPA as follows:

A. Non-Grant Related Work: For the purposes of this Agreement, "non-grant
related work" shall include all services provided by the Contractor for which the ESJPA does not
receive reimbursement from a grantor agency. Under the direction of the ESJPA Board of
Directors, this work shall include providing advocacy services on behalf of the member county
interests; providing technical support services and information distribution; organizing,
scheduling, preparing agendas, and recording minutes for ESJPA Board meetings, for the ESJPA
Technical Advisory Group, and for the ESJPA Legislative Task Force; representing the ESJPA
at conferences, workshops, and seminars, as well as to governmental agencies, trade
associations, private industry, and other organizations; facilitating coordination and cooperation
between member counties; preparing reports, technical memoranda, grant applications, and
other documents on behalf of the ESJPA; managing ESJPA contracts and performing associated
administrative and clerical duties; and other related services and projects as may be requested by
the ESJPA Board of Directors.

B. Grant Related Work: Upon request by the ESJPA and/or member counties,
Contractor shall provide services for the administration and implementation of grant-related
projects. Services shall be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the
grantor agency and shall be consistent with the approved scope of work as described in the grant
agreement between the ESJPA and grantor agency.

Contractor may provide requested services to the ESJPA for the following grant
programs:

. Household Hazardous Waste Grants

. Waste Tire Grants

. Used Oil Opportunity Payment Program
. SB 332 City/County Recycling Programs
. USDA Solid Waste Grants

Upon mutual agreement, RCRC may provide additional grant-related services, in
accordance with the terms of this agreement, for other grant programs as may be requested by
the ESJPA in writing.

C. Additional Work: Upon mutual written agreement of the parties, RCRC may
provide additional services to the ESJTPA beyond those specified above. The basis for
compensation to RCRC for these additional services shall be as specified in writing and as
agreed to by both parties.

11/29/17

60



1 &* )
\ TAG CHAIR ~ JIM MCHARGUE, AMADOR COUNTY
E S PA TAG VICE CHAIR — TODD STORTI, BUTTE COUNTY
: PROGRAM MANAGER ~ STACI HEATON :

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR — GREG NORTON

TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP (TAG)

Rura] Countles CHAIR — MICHAEL KOBSEFF, SISKIYOU COUNTY
Environmental SBI'ViCES VICE CHAIR — DENISE CARTER, COLUSA COUNTY
R ; :

Joint Powers Authority

MEMORANDUM

To:  ESJPA Board of Directors
From: Staci Heaton, Program Manager
Date: December 2, 2019

RE: _Proposed RCRC Solid Waste 2020 Policy Principles

fi

Each year, the RCRC Board of Directors adopts Policy Principles to help serve as a guide to
RCRC staff when reviewing legislation and regulations to determine the appropriate position
for the organization and its members.

Traditionally, the Policy Principles are provided to the RCRC Board of Directors in draft form
at the December RCRC Board of Directors Meeting. RCRC staff encourages Board Members
to share with other members of their County Boards of Supervisors and staff for review,
which helps to make revisions to the document. The Policy Policies are formally adopted
annually at the January RCRC Board of Directors Meeting. The Policy Principles may also be
updated periodically to reflect new issues or policy changes made by the RCRC Board of
Directors.

RCRC staff reviewed the current Policy Principles and provided a few modest improvements
to the document, including an additional paragraph regarding organics. Please review the
attached. Solid Waste Section and provide any proposed edits to Maggie Chui
(mchui@rcrenet.org) in writing no later than January 1, 2019 so these revisions can be
included in the January 2020 Board Packet and considered at the January RCRC Board of
Directors Meeting.

| Attachment

¢ 2020 Proposed RCRC Solid Waste Policy Principles

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL. NORTE, EL. DORADO, GLENN, IMPERIAL, INYO, LAKE, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MODOC, MONO,

NEVADA, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TUOLUMNE

1215 K STREET, SUITE 1650, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 PHONF' ©16447-4806 FAX:O16447-166% WEB: WWW.ESJPA.ORG
‘ 61



62



WASTE MANAGEMENT AND RECYCLING

Alternative Daily Cover. RCRC supports preserving the use of green waste
materials for alternative daily cover as a viable option, and does not support having
the Tipping Fee apply to green waste materials that are used as ADC under the
current fee structure.

Disposal Bans. RCRC supports advanced statewide planning and infrastructure for
convenient identification and recovery of all materials and products prior to banning
from California landfill disposal or requiring separate handling or processing. RCRC
supports active contributions from manufacturers and retailers to establish programs
to cover the costs for disposal, recycling, special handling, and/or any public education
required for their end-of-life products, before any such disposal bans are
implemented.

Disposal Mandates. RCRC supports appropriate tools for municipalities to achieve
statewide waste diversion goal, including extended producer responsibility, an easing
of the permitting restrictions for organic waste processes and other solid waste
activities, model program guidelines, and increased funding. RCRC opposes
regulatory requirements that do not consider existing infrastructure and capacity
and the economic feasibility of new facilities, and that do not provide the flexibility
for phasing-in various regions and areas of the state, especially in rural counties.

Electronic and Universal Waste. RCRC supports the proper disposal of electronic
and universal waste through programs that place the cost of compliance on
manufacturers and consumers rather than on county-operated landfills or waste
management programs.

Extended Producer Responsibility. RCRC supports producer responsibility for
financing and arranging the collection and recycling of their products at end-of-life,
preferably through product take-back by the manufacturers/retailers.

Financing State Solid Waste Disposal Programs. RCRC supports a wide range
of options to reform the financing mechanisms for the management of solid waste
programs, including: increasing the current tipping fee as a temporary measure;
applying new solid waste management fees on aspects of the waste stream that
currently have no levies; reforming the programs that CalRecycle manages to limit
costs; or, a combination of these options. RCRC opposes an increase in the Tipping
Fee or other funding mechanisms for projects and programs that are not part of a
direct effort to manage and reduce the overall amount of solid waste.

Jurisdictional Compliance. RCRC supports using program-based criteria to
determine jurisdictional compliance with statutory waste diversion requirements
that incorporate rural considerations. RCRC opposes numerical justifications on
program implementation that do not include rural considerations.

63



Organics. RCRC supports robust state funding for infrastructure and capacity
building for state-mandaied organics waste collection programs. RCRC also supports
alternative organic waste collection programs for low population counties, including
later implementation dates to allow for capacity and infrastructure building.

Permitting. RCRC supports “tiered” solid waste facility permitting and operating
requirements with reduced administrative and operational requirements that are
commensurate with the limited environmental and public health risks associated
with small-volume facility operation in low-density population areas.

64



Agenda Item IV

PRESENTATIONS



66



Water Boards

~+ Nalibsrsionie IV atas
olech 7} Alwrugs ‘a3l

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
- ORDER WQ 20xx-xxxx-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

CALIFORNIA

Water Boards

STATE WATER RESOURGCES CONTROL BOARD

REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BUOARDS

DRAFT - October 15, 2019

67




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

68



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

Table of Contents

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD.......ooeeoeoeoooeeoeoeeeoooooo i
ORDER WQ 20xx-xxxx-DWQ............... e e RS S i
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR DISASTER-RELATED WASTES i
Table of Contents..............ccoeeviveiineceeeeeeeeee e, tn oo T e e a e n T n annanak nemne s e en e an e m e s sn s i
ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS..........ooutoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeceeeeeeeeeeeee oo i
FINDINGS ...ttt ee e 2
ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS ...t 4
OTHER REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS ......covoitoeeceteese oo 4
A PROHIBITIONS ...ttt ettt 8
B CONDITIONS ...ttt 9
C.  SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL DISCHARGES OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES . .. 9
D.  CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT REGULATED
CLASS Il OR Il MSW WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES oo 11

E. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT
TEMPORARY WASTE STAGING AREAS (WASTE PILES) LOCATED AT REGULATED
DISPOSAL FACILITIES ......cocoiiieecieeeteee et oo 12

F. = CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT
TEMPORARY WASTE STORAGE AREAS (WASTE PILES) NOT LOCATED AT REGULATED
WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES..........ovueeeeeeeeoeeeeeeecoeeeeeeeeeeeeoee oo oo 12

G. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT
TEMPORARY SURFACE IMPOUNDMENTS NOT LOCATED ON REGULATED FACILITIES

...................................................................................................................................... 14
H.  SPECIFICATIONS SPECIFIC TO DISCHARGES OF MASS ANIMAL MORTALITY
WASTES ...ttt eee e 15
l. SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGES FROM OTHER EMERGENCY
DISASTER AREAS ...ttt e 16
J. ENROLLMENT PROCESS. ................. TR o s (B e oo o ot a0 o o PR 17
I (eayTe? =l |\ = N O 17
NOTICE OF TERMINATION. ...ttt oo 18
CERTIFICATION ...ttt et ee e e e oo oo 18
ATTACHMENT A - DEFINITIONS ......c.coivitieeieeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeee oo oo 19
ATTACHMENT B - Landfills that can Accept Disaster-Related Waste ...................................... 21
ATTACHMENT C = NOTICE OF INTENT .....oovveteeeeeeeee oo 25
ATTACHMENT D — NOTICE OF TERMINATION ..o oo 27
i



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ

GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

Antidegradation Policy

Basin Plan
BMP

Title 27
CEQA

EIR

Industrial General Permit

LCRS
LEA
MSW
NOI
NOT
NPDES

Regional Water Board
ROWD

State Water Board
U.S. EPA

WDRS

70

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

State Water Board Resolution 68-16,
Statement of Policy with Respect to
Maintaining High Quality of Waters of
California

Water Quality Control Plan

Best Management Practices

California Code of Regulations, Title 27
California Environmental Quality Act
Environmental Impact Report

Waste Discharge Requirements for
Discharge of Storm Water Associated with
Industrial Activities Excluding Construction
Activities

Leachate Collection and Removal System
Leachate Collection and Removal System
Municipal Solid Waste

Notice of intent

Notice of Termination

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System

Regional Water Quality Control Board
Report of Water Discharge
State Water Resources Control Board

United States Environmental Protection
Agency

Waste Discharge Requirements



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

FINDINGS:
The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) finds that:

1. Catastrophic events such as fires, storms, floods, landslides, earthquakes, mass animal
mortalities, spills, and other emergencies can create large amounts of disaster-related
waste such as burn ash, concrete, wood, green waste, appliances, computer
equipment, dead animals, food items, cars, household chemicals, paint, etc., collectively
referred to as disaster-related wastes. Waste materials resulting from these
catastrophic events may be mixed such that individual components are not practicably
separable for purposes of waste management. The occurrence of disasters may also
result in secondary disasters. For example, wildfires can exacerbate the risk of
flooding, erosion, debris flows, and slope failures as a result of the loss of vegetated
cover. Damage from earthquakes and other disasters can affect vital infrastructure,
such as water supply and sewer systems, and threaten beneficial uses of waters of the
state; power outages and fires following earthquakes can result in mass quantities of
spoiled food and other goods requiring disposal. Emergency cleanup activities to
address disaster events may create unusually large amounts of waste needing to be
disposed in a short period of time, may involve wastes that would not normally be
accepted for disposal at a waste management facility, and often necessitate temporary
waste staging areas on land or at regulated waste management facilities.

2. The discharge of waste to land in the State of California is an action that is subject to
restrictions adopted in individual or general Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs)
issued by the State Water Board or Regional Water Quality Control Boards (collectively
Water Boards).

3. California Water Code (Water Code), section 13260, subdivision (a)(1), requires any
person (including any city, county, district, or other entity) discharging, or proposing to
discharge, wastes within the State of California that could affect the quality of waters of
the state, other than into a community sewer system, to file a Report of Waste
Discharge (ROWD) with the Water Board. Unless exempted, Water Code, section
13263, subdivision (a), requires that the Water Board adopt discharge requirements for
any existing or proposed waste discharges within its area of jurisdiction, except
discharges into a community sewer system, even if no ROWD has been filed.

4. For purposes of this General Waste Discharge Requirements for Disposal of Disaster-
Related Wastes (hereafter “General Order”), a discharger is any person discharging or
proposing to discharge disaster-related wastes. For permanent disposal in regulated
facilities such as landfills, the discharger is the owner/operator of the landfill.

5. Issuing WDRs prior to cleanup of emergency wastes requires time that may significantly
impede the cleanup of emergency wastes, which would likely increase the threat to
public health and the environment. Under emergency or disaster conditions, there is
limited time for those performing cleanup of disaster-related wastes to prepare a formal
ROWD and for the Water Board to prescribe new WDRs or to revise existing WDRs.

2
7



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

Therefore, to expedite the cleanup of disaster-related wastes, enroliment under this
General Order for these types of discharges is in the public interest.

6. For purposes of this General Order, wastes resulting from disaster-impacted areas are
herein referred to as "disaster-related wastes."

7. All nine Regional Water Boards adopted waivers for disposal of disaster-related wastes,
but many large disasters and clean-up efforts cross regional boundaries. This has
resulted in delays in clean up responses due to differences among Regional Water
Board requirements. Additionally, waivers expire every five years and require additional
staff time to update and renew. Water Code section 13263, subdivision (a), provides
the State Water Board with authority to issue WDRs for any proposed or existing
discharge that could affect water quality. This General Order provides statewide
conditions allowing for a more efficient response. If a discharge is covered by a
Regional Water Board Order for disposal of disaster-related wastes, the operation may
continue under that authority until those orders expire or come up for renewal. At that
time, or earlier at the discretion of the Regional Water Boards, it is the intent of the State
Water Board that Regional Water Boards will use this General Order for permitting the
disposal of disaster-related wastes.

8. This General Order applies to emergency situations for disposal of disaster-related
wastes from disaster areas where a state of emergency has been proclaimed by the
Governor pursuant to the Government Code, section 8550 et seq., and is categorically
exempt from California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (California Code of
Regulations [CCR], title 14, section 15269(a) and Public Resources Code [PRC],
section 21080, subdivision [b][3])). For emergencies that are not in a Governor-
declared disaster area, this General Order is exempt from CEQA because the Order
and the conditions of this Order will apply only to activities necessary to prevent or
‘mitigate an emergency, as defined by CEQA (CCR, title 14, section 15269, subdivision
[c], and PRC, section 21080, subdivision [b][4]).

9. CEQA defines emergency as “a sudden, unexpected occurrence, involving a clear and
imminent danger, demanding immediate action to prevent or mitigate loss of, or damage
to, life, health, property, or essential public services. ‘Emergency’ includes such
occurrences as fire, flood, earthquake, or other soil or geologic movements, as well as
such occurrences as riot, accident, or sabotage” (PRC, section 21060, subdivision 3).
Specific actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency are exempt from
CEQA. Emergency activities do not include long-term projects undertaken for the

" purpose of preventing or mitigating a situation that has a low probability of occurrence in
the short-term (CCR, title 14, section 15259, subdivision [c]). For purposes of this
General Order, “emergency” has the same meaning as defined in CEQA.

10.Water Code, section 13260, subdivision (a) requires a report of waste discharge
(ROWD) from any person or agency proposing to discharge waste. The legal
requirement for dischargers discharging as a result of cleanup of an emergency or
disaster area is to submit a ROWD and for the Regional Water Board to prescribe

3
72



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ v
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

11

WDRs for discharges of wastes necessary to protect life or property during emergency
cleanup actions following disasters such as fires, floods, storms, earthquakes, or mass
mortality of animals in a Declared Disaster Area. A discharger submitting a Notice of
Intent to enroll and comply with the conditions in this General Order satisfies this
requirement.

.Water Code, section 13264, subdivision (a) prohibits waste discharge without the

discharger submitting a ROWD and the Water Board adoption of WDRs. A General
Order for cleanup of wastes following fires, floods, storms, earthquakes, or mass
mortality of animals when a state of emergency has been proclaimed by the Governor is
critical. The formal process of dischargers preparing a ROWD and the Regional Water
Board adopting WDR's is a several-month long process that would unduly delay cleanup
after these types of emergencies.

12.The State Water Board notified the landfill operators and owners identified in

Attachment B, as well as governmental agencies and interested persons of its intent to

adopt a General Order and provided them the opportunity to attend a public meeting

and submit their written comments and recommendations.

13.This General Order does not supersede any federal, state, or local law or regulation.

The State Water Board, in a public meeting, heard and considered all comments
pertaining to this matter.

ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS

14. State Water Board Resolution No. 68-16 (Statement of Policy with Respect to

Maintaining High Quality Waters in California, the state’s “Antidegradation Policy”)
provides that high quality waters of the state must be maintained unless it is
demonstrated that any degradation will be consistent with the maximum benefit to the
people of the state, will not unreasonably affect beneficial uses, and will not result in
water quality worse than that described in the Reglonal Water Board’s policies. This
General Order is consistent with the Antidegradation Policy because it includes
conditions that require dischargers to minimize or eliminate discharges of wastes that
can have adverse impacts on the water quality that supports beneficial uses of waters of
the state. This General Order imposes conditions on discharges of disaster-related
wastes that would not otherwise apply following the appropriate notification to the
Regional Water Board. All temporary discharges regulated under this General Order
are short-term and are not expected to cause degradation of water quality. Permanent
disposal is only authorized to lined waste management units operating pursuant to
CCR, title 27. Therefore, no degradation of water quality is authorized under this-
General Order. Coverage under this General Order can be terminated if conditions are
not met.

OTHER REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD.
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ _ ,
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

15. This General Order is in the public interest because these discharges would comply
with the conditions of this General Order and would not result in violation of a Regional
Water Board’s Basin Plan.

16.Except as provided under Water Code section 13269, subdivision (d), and upon
notification of the State Water Board, Water Code section 13269, subdivision (c)
provides that neither submittal of a ROWD, nor the adoption of WDRs is required for
discharges resulting from certain emergency activities. The emergency activities
described in Water Code section 13269, subdivision (c) are:

a. Immediate emergency work necessary to protect life or property or immediate
emergency repairs to public service facilities necessary to maintain service as a
result of a disaster in a disaster-stricken area in which a State of Emergency has
been proclaimed by the Governor pursuant to the Government Code, section
8550 et seq.; and

b. Emergency projects undertaken, carried out, or approved by a public agency to
maintain, repair, or restore an existing highway, as defined in the Vehicle Code,
section 360, except for a highway designated as an official state scenic highway
pursuant to the Vehicle Code, section 262 of the Streets and Highways Code,
within the existing right-of-way of the highway, damaged as a result of fire, flood,
storm, earthquake, land subsidence, gradual earth movement, or landslide within
one year of the damage. This paragraph does not exempt from this section any
project undertaken, carried out, or approved by a public agency to expand or
widen a highway damaged by fire, flood, storm, earthquake, land subsidence,
gradual earth movement, or landslide.

The activities covered by this General Order are outside the scope of Water Code,
section 13269, subdivision (c) as this General Order provides requirements for disposal
of disaster-related debris, which occurs following the immediate response actions
described in Water Code, section 13269, subdivision (c). Additionally, section 13269,
subdivision (d) provides that section 13269, subdivision (c) is not a limitation on Water
Board authority to determine that a waiver of the requirement to submit a ROWD and
obtain WDRs shall not be granted.

17.Pursuant to Water Code section 13260 subdivision (c), Dischargers must submit a
ROWD when there is a material change in discharge or new discharge. Landfill owners
and/or operators proposing to accept the material included in this General Order for
permanent disposal would constitute a material change in discharge. Temporary
staging areas are considered new discharges. Therefore, submitting a Notice of Intent
to enroll in this General Order is needed to satisfy the requirements of Water Code,
'section 13260. Landfills and other areas used for permanent disposal are required to
submit a ROWD following submittal of the Notice of Intent to the Regional Water Board
in accordance with the requirements of this General Order.



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

18. Pursuant to Water Code section 13263, subdivision (@), waste discharges to waters of
the state are a privilege, not a right, and.adoption of this General Order does not create
a vested right to continue any discharge.

19. Water Code section 13267, subdivision (b), provides that “in conducting an investigation
specified in subdivision (a), the regional board may require that any person who has
discharged, discharges, or is suspected of having discharged or discharging, or who
proposed to discharge within its region, or any citizen or domiciliary, or political agency
or entity of this state who had discharged , discharges, or is suspected of having
discharged or discharging, or who proposed to discharge waste outside of its region that
could affect the quality of the waters of the state within its region shall furnish, under
penalty of perjury, technical or monitoring program reports which the regional board
requires. The burden, including costs of these reports, shall bear a reasonable
relationship to the need for the reports and the benefits to be obtained from the reports.”
The technical reports required by this General Order are necessary to assure
compliance with its conditions.

20.All WDRs must implement the applicable Regional Water Board's Basin Plan for the
region in which the discharge occurs; therefore, this General Order requires dischargers
to comply with all applicable Basin Plan requirements and water quality objectives
governing the discharge. In the event of a conflict between the requirements of this
General Order and the Basin Plan, the more stringent requirement prevails.

21.Regulated landfills have WDRs implementing CCR, title 27; State Water Board
Resolution No. 93-62; and federal Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Criteria in 40 CFR
258.

22.This General Order is not a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
permit issued pursuant to the Federal Clean Water Act. For operations where storm
water discharges off-site, the Discharger may be required to enroll under the State
Water Board’s Order 2014-0057-DWQ, NPDES General Permit No. CAS000001, Waste
Discharge Requirements for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Industrial
Activities Excluding Construction Activities (Industrial General Permit), and/or future
promulgations. If wastewater is discharged to surface water, the Discharger may be
required to obtain an individual NPDES permit. Coverage under this General Order
does not exempt a facility from the federal Clean Water Act. Any facility required to
obtain such permits must notify the Regional Water Board.

23.The issuance of this General Order is consistent with the goal to protect waters of the
state, while considering economic and environmental impacts as stated in the Strategic
Plan of the Water Boards and Water Code section 13263, subdivision (a).

24 Pursuant to Water Code, section 106.3, the state statutorily recognizes that “every
human being has the right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water adequate for
human consumption, cooking, and sanitary purposes.” The human right to water
extends to all Californians, including disadvantaged individuals and groups and

6
75



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

communities in rural and urban areas. This General Order protects the human right to
water by providing a mechanism to quickly remove disaster-related wastes from public
areas and to lined containment systems, therefore protecting water quality.

25. Failure to prevent conditions that create or threaten to create pollution or nuisance or
that may unreasonably degrade waters of the state will be sufficient reason to modify,
revoke, or enforce this General Order.

26. Pursuant to Water Code, sections 13241, the State Water Board, in establishing the
requirements contained herein, considered factors including, but not limited to, the
following:

a. Past, present, and probable future beneficial uses of water:

The proposed discharge will not adversely affect present or probably future
beneficial uses of water because the permanent discharge is only authorized to
lined waste containment systems with detection monitoring to ensure discharges
do not reach groundwater and temporary waste management units that are
required to be clean-closed immediately following the use as a staging area.

b. Environmental characteristics of the hydrographic unit under consideration,
including the quality of water available thereto: .

The WDRs for the permanent discharge locations consider the environmental
characteristics and quality of water available at those locations for permanent
disposal. Given the emergency-response nature of this General Order, it is not
feasible to consider the environmental characteristics and hydrographic units for
every potential scenario for temporary disposal conditions; however, this General
Order includes requirements for considering environmental characteristics when
establishing temporary discharge locations.

c. Water quality conditions that could reasonably be achieved through the’
coordinated control of all factors which affect water quality in the area:

The requirements of this General Order will not affect groundwater quality. The
Water Board will use its existing authority and these WDRs to ensure protection
of water quality from these discharges.

d. Economic considerations:

The requirements in this General Order do not subject the Dischargers to
economic disadvantage compared to other similar discharges.-

e. The need for developing housing within the region(s):

The Dischargers are not responsible for developing housing as a result of this
General Order.

f. The need to develop and use recycled water:



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

The Dischargers may propose the use of recycled water for dust control when
performing activities related to this General Order when available.

27.Class Il and Il landfills are not authorized to accept radioactive waste. If an emergency

occurs as a result of a radioactive event, thereby creating mass quantities of radioactive
waste, those wastes are not considered to be disaster-related wastes for the purposes
of this General Order. Such radioactive wastes must be disposed in a waste
management unit designed and operated to contain radioactive wastes.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, pursuant to Water Code, sections 13263 and 13267, the
Discharger, its agents, successors, and assigns, in order to meet the provisions contained in
division 7 of the Water Code and regulations adopted hereunder, shall comply with the
following:

A. PROHIBITIONS

1.

Discharge of wastes, directly or indirectly, to any surface waters of the state, including
ephemeral streams and vernal pools, is prohibited.

Discharge of wastes to surface waters including overflow, wastewater, or bypass from
transport, treatment, storage, or disposal systems to adjacent drainages or adjacent
properties is prohibited, except as authorized by an NPDES permit.

Disaster-related waste management operations that create, or contribute t‘é, a condition
of pollution or nuisance are prohibited.

Disaster-related waste management operations that create, or contribute to, conditions
that violate applicable Basin Plan waste discharge prohibitions are prohibited.

Any material classified as a designated waste cannot be used for daily cover pursuant
to CCR, title 27, section 20705, subdivision (e)(1).

Disaster-related wastes managed in a manner that causes corrosion, decay, or
otherwise reduces or impairs the integrity of containment structures at any waste
management unit, pursuant to CCR title 27, section 20200, subdivision(b)(1) are
prohibited.

Disaster-related wastes managed in a manner that mixes or commingles with other
wastes that can produce a violent reaction (including heat, pressure, fire or explosion),
that can produce toxic byproducts, or that can produce any reaction products requiring a
higher level of containment, or resuits in the mixture being classified as a restricted
waste, pursuant to CCR, title 27, section 20200, subdivision (b)(2), are prohibited.

Wastes such as paint cans, gas cans, solvents, poisons, household cleaners, drums
with unknown contents, electronic wastes, refrigerators, or any potentially hazardous
wastes (other than ash from fire disaster areas) are prohibited from being discharged at
a Class Il or lll landfill and must be removed from the disaster-related waste stream and
managed in accordance with the applicable regulatory requirerments



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

9. Temporary staging areas shall not be located in areas underlain by fractured bedrock:
aquifer or highly permeable soils (e.g., gravels, sands, and loamy sands) or in facilities
that are characterized by such deposits (e.g., gravel quarry).

10. Wastes derived from a radioactive event is classified as radioactive waste, not disaster-
related waste, and are prohibited from being disposed in landfills pursuant to this
General Order. This prohibition does not apply to disaster-related wastes that may -
contain an incidental amount of radioactivity that would occur within the waste stream
from other disasters (such as medical devices burned in a fire).

B. CONDITIONS

1. This General Order applies only to disaster-related waste streams (1) from Declared
Disaster Areas, or (2) from other emergency response actions that are exempt from
CEQA, and (3) that are discharged to facilities that submit a Notice of Intent.

2. All conditions of this General Order remain applicable until they are satisfied, and the
Discharger submits a complete Notice of Termination, or the discharge becomes
covered under WDRs issued by the Regional Water Board. Authorization to discharge
under this General Order is temporary and shall expire under the following conditions,

whichever is earliest, unless otherwise provided in writing by the Water Board:

a. If applicable, the Governor or the Legislature terminates the state of emergency
pursuant to Government Code section 8629; or

b: The Water Board terminates enroliment of individual Dischargers/Units, or all
Dischargers/Units temporarily enrolied under the General Order for a particular
emergency, or terminates this General Order in its entirety (“Units” in this context
refers to any regulated landfill, temporary waste pile, temporary surface
impoundment, or mass mortality emergency landfill being covered under this
General Order).

3. Wastes discharged to temporary waste management units under this General Order
(whether located at a regulated disposal facility or not), together with any materials used
to contain the temporary waste piles, must be removed from the temporary
storage/staging location and restored to its original state within six months of a
declaration of emergency by the Governor or prior to filing a Notice of Termination,
whichever occurs first, or as a required by the Regional Water Board. Any person
permanently discharging or storing disaster-related waste longer than noted above must
file a'Report of Waste Discharge and obtain waste discharge requirements.

C. SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL DISCHARGES OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

1. Cleanup activities and management of disaster-related wastes must minimize or
eliminate the discharge of any wastes that could adversely affect the quality or
beneficial uses of the waters of the state.

9
78



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ _
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

2.

Landfili(s) designated to receive disaster-related wastes must dispose of the disaster-
related waste within waste management units underlain by composite liner systems. .

Disaster-related wastes derived from cleanup of disaster-impacted areas and
discharged into regulated waste disposal facilities must be isolated, to the extent
practicable, from areas of the facility that are not lined.

Inert wastes derived from cleanup of disaster-impacted areas shall be separated and
recycled when appropriate and practicable. Inert wastes that are suitable for reuse or
recycling do not require permanent disposal at a classified waste management or
disposal facility (i.e., permitted tandfill). If not disposed, these materials do not need
coverage under this General Order.

Composite liner systems identified for permanent disposal of disaster-related waste
must meet the liner requirements for discharges of municipal solid waste (MSW),
pursuant to State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) Resolution No.
93-62, or engineered alternatives to those prescriptive standards, must satisfy minimum
containment standards for Class Il MSW landfills promulgated in State Water
Resources Control Board regulations governing discharges of designated waste,
pursuant to CCR, title 27, sections 20260 and 20310.

Disposal of disaster-related wastes, to the extent practical, must not impede movement
of leachate into a leachate collection and removal system (LCRS).

Food wastes, animal.carcasses, and other putrescible wastes derived from cleanup of
disaster-impacted areas must be discharged for disposal in compliance with conditions
of this General Order and covered expeditiously. /

All disaster-related wastes must be protected from flooding and inundation, in
compliance with the current WDRs for the affected unit or units, at the regulated waste
disposal facility.

The waste streams to be discharged for treatment or permanent disposal shall only be
disposed into:

a. Liquid waste management or treatment units as allowed by waste discharge
requirements issued by the Regional Water Board, or

b. Solid waste management units or disposal facilities (e.g., Class Il or Ill MSW
landfills) underlain with engineered composite liners and leachate collection
systems that satisfy the requirements of State Water Board Resolution No. 93-62
and that have WDRs for the active disposal operations; or

¢. Temporary staging areas established in accordance with the conditions of this
General Order: or

d. Other categories of waste management units regulated under WDRs issued by
the Regional Water Board that allow that type of waste.

10
79




STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

10. Al disaster-related wastes must be setback at least 100 feet from any surface water or
well. A lesser setback distance may be aliowed by the Regional Water Board if the
Discharger can demonstrate that the groundwater, geologic, topographic, and well
construction conditions at the site are adequate to protect water quality.

11.Precipitation that falls on, or water that is applied to waste piles, must be treated as
leachate if runoff occurs.

12.When applicable, Dischargers with coverage under this General Order must also apply
for coverage under the General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with
Construction Activities (Construction Storm Water Permit) and comply with its
requirements. The Construction Storm Water Permit (State Board Order No. 2009-
0009- DWQ) may be found on the Water Board’s website.

Visit the Water Boards website for the Construction Storm Water Permit

D. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT REGULATED
CLASS Il OR Il MSW WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES

1. Owners/operators of regulated waste management or disposal facilities proposing to
discharge waste from disaster-impacted areas to the regulated waste disposal facility
and for which such discharge would or could otherwise cause a violation of the WDRs
for the facility, shall submit a Notice of Intent to the appropriate Regional Water Board
within 30 days after the initial discharge of any disaster-related emergency wastes. The
Notice of Intent must contain the information listed in Attachment C of this General
Order.

2. Emergency wastes (not otherwise suitable for recycling or reuse) derived from cleanup
of emergency/disaster-impacted areas and managed under provisions of this General
Order must only be discharged for permanent disposal into units that are underlain with
an engineered composite liner system and a leachate collection system meeting the
requirements of CCR, title 27, and State Water Board Resolution No. 93-62.

3. Within 30 days after the completion of discharges for each emergency, the
owner/operator of a regulated waste disposal facility that accepted waste from disaster-
impacted areas must submit an amendment to their ROWD (amendment to the facility’s
Joint Technical Document) describing the material change to their discharge pertaining
to the temporary acceptance, management, and disposal of the waste. The amended
ROWD must include a completed Notice of Termination form and information about the
waste types accepted, location of the discharge including a map, and approximate
volumes discharged.

4. The following categories of disaster-related wastes derived from burned areas may be
discharged as alternative daily cover (ADC)'to a Class Ill MSW landfill:

a. Solid wastes that are classified as inert wastes (per CCR, title 27, section
20230);

11
80



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

b. Solid wastes that meet the criteria for ADC (per CCR, title 27, section 20690 et
seq.); and

c. Solid wastes identified by the Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) and approved by
local Regional Board staff as being suitable use for ADC.

E. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT TEMPORARY
WASTE STAGING AREAS (WASTE PILES) LOCATED AT REGULATED DISPOSAL
FACILITIES

1. Owners/operators of regulated waste management or disposal facilities proposing to
accept discharges of waste from disaster-impacted areas to a temporary waste staging
area located at a regulated waste disposal facility must submit a Notice of Intent to their
local Regional Water Board within 30 days after the initial discharge of any disaster-
related wastes. The Notice of Intent must contain the information listed in Attachment C
of this General Order.

2. Temporary waste staging areas may only be located within MSW landfills, inert landfills,
or other designated areas where disaster-related wastes are temporarily discharged,
stored, treated, or sorted for recycling, and where containment features and ancillary
features for precipitation and drainage controls are present. Temporary waste staging
areas are also considered temporary waste management units.

3. Heavy gauge plastic sheeting (not less than 20 mils thick) or other impermeable
materials (e.g., asphalt, concrete, compacted Class Il road-base, etc.) must be installed
prior to establishing a temporary waste pile to protect natural geciogical materials from
contact with the waste or its leachate.

4. Owners/operators of regulated waste management or disposal facilities must prevent
surface runoff/run-on from contacting wastes derived from cieanup of disaster-impacted
areas and must prevent erosion and transport of soils containing disaster-related
wastes or waste constituents by surface runoff from all temporary emergency waste
piles. The facility owner/operator must implement best management practices (BMPs)
for storm water conveyance and control.

5. Hazardous wastes must not be discharged to temporary waste piles.

F. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT TEMPORARY
WASTE STORAGE AREAS (WASTE PILES) NOT LOCATED AT REGULATED WASTE
DISPOSAL FACILITIES

1. Owners/Operators proposing to estabiish a temporary waste pile not located at a
regulated waste disposal facility must submit a Notice of Intent to the Regional Water
Board within 30 days of initial discharge. The Notice of Intent must contain the
information listed in Attachment C of this General Order.

2. Owners/operators of temporary waste piles not at regulated facilities must ensure that
they are sited, designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to ensure compliance
with the following minimum standards:

12

81



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

a.

The bottom of a temporary waste pile must be placed at least 5 feet above the
highest historically known or anticipated level of groundwater, and more than 100
feet from any surface water or well.

Temporary waste piles must be protected from inundation or washout. .

Temporary waste piles must not be located on a known Holocene fault; waste
piles must not be located at areas of potential rapid geologic change (e.g.,
landslides, debris flows, flash flood areas, etc.).

Temporary waste piles must, to the extent feasible, prevent rainwater infiltration
and runoff and control fugitive dust, vectors, odors, blowing litter, and
scavenging. Any cover material used must not consist of or contain material
known or anticipated to be classified as a designated or hazardous waste.

Temporary waste management operations that include wastes with a liquid
content exceeding its moisture-holding capacity and/or containing free liquids
must comply with requirements for temporary surface impoundments in
accordance with the specific conditions in Section G of this General Order,
below.

Temporary waste piles must be designed, constructed and operated to limit
ponding, infiltration, inundation, erosion, slope failure, and washout to the
greatest extent possible. Surface drainage from outside of the temporary waste
pile must be diverted from the location of the temporary waste pile through
implementation of BMPs for storm water control and conveyance. .

3. Owners/operators of temporary waste piles not on regulated facilities must discharge
any return water or ponded water contained within the temporary waste pile to a.
sanitary sewer system, a regulated facility permitted to receive the wastewater, or a
temporary surface impoundment.

4. Owners/operators of temporary waste piles not on regulated facilities must post at least
one clearly visible sign listing the following minimum information: a) project name,
b) brief project description, and c) operator name and phone number. The sign or signs
must be in English and any other language common in the local community to more
effectively communicate the minimum contact information. The sign(s) must be
maintained in a legible condition so long as waste piles remain on site.

5. Liquid hazardous wastes must not be discharged to temporary waste piles.

13
82



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES -

G. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE OF DISASTER-RELATED WASTES AT TEMPORARY
SURFACE IMPOUNDMENTS NOT LOCATED ON REGULATED FACILITIES

1. Owners/Operators proposing to establish a temporary surface impoundment not located
at a regulated waste disposal facility must submit a Notice of Intent to the Regional
Water Board within 30 days after the initial discharge of any disaster related wastes
from a Declared Disaster Area. The Notice of Intent must contain the information listed
in Attachment C of this General Order.

2. Owners/operators of temporary surface impoundments not on regulated facilities must
ensure that they are sited, designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to ensure
compliance with the following minimum standards:

a. The bottom of a temporary surface impoundment must be placed at least 5 feet
above the highest historically known or anticipated level of groundwater, and
more than 100 feet from any surface water or well.

b. Temporary surface impoundments must be protected from inundation or
washout.

c. Temporary surface impoundments must not be located on a known Holocene
fault.

d. Temporary surface impoundments must not be located at areas of potential rapid
geologic change (e.g., landslides, debris flows, flashflood areas, etc.).

e. Temporary surface impoundments must be underlain by a temporary
impermeable barrier (e.g., heavy gauge plastic with water-tight seams) or a
relatively impermeable surface (e.g., competent asphalt, concrete, etc.). The
liner must be installed prior to establishing a temporary surface impoundment
and must protect natural geological materials from contact with the waste. If
emergency conditions prevent the use of a low permeable barrier and/or based
on the emergency waste characterization risk, adequate site restoration to
original conditions may require more substantial groundwater or soil
investigations and site cleanup as required by the Executive Officer.

f. Berms and containment structures of temporary surface impoundments must be
constructed of materials that minimize leakage of the wastewater and must be
composed of inert materials that will not cause adverse reactions (e.g., corrosion
decay, or otherwise reduce or impair the integrity of the containment structure)
when placed in contact with the liquid wastes stored within the temporary surface
impoundment. .

g. Temporary surface impoundments must be designed, operated and maintained
to ensure that liquid wastes are at least two feet below the top of the
impoundment (measured vertically from the surface of the liquid up to the point
on the surrounding lined berm or dike having the lowest elevation), and must be
designed and constructed to prevent overtopping as a result of wind conditions.

14
83




STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ ‘
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

h. Direct pipeline discharges of liquid can only occur into temporary surface
impoundments with automatic or manually operated fail-safe systems to prevent
overfilling.

i. Temporary surface impoundments must be designed and constructed to prevent
scouring of containment structures at the points of liquid discharge into the
impoundments.

j. Temporary surface impoundments must be designed, constructed and operated
to limit inundation, erosion, slope failure, and washout to the greatest extent
possible. Surface drainage from outside of the temporary surface impoundments
must be diverted from the location of the temporary surface impoundment
through implementation of BMPs for storm water control and conveyance.

3. When applicable, owners/operators of temporary surface impoundments not located at
aregulated waste disposal facility must obtain coverage under the Construction Storm
Water Permit and prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan to obtain coverage
under this General Order.

4. Owners/operators of temporary surface impoundments not on regulated facilities must
ensure that only disaster-related waste streams are discharged into temporary surface
impoundments.

5. Ali visible portions of synthetic liner systems in temporary surface impoundments must
be inspected weekly, or daily as necessary, until all free liquid is removed from the
surface impoundment as part of closure. If, during the active life of the temporary
surface impoundment, the wastes are removed and the bottom of the impoundment is
cleaned down to the liner, an inspection must be made of the bottom of the liner prior to
refilling the impoundment.

6. Owners/operators of temporary surface impoundments not on regulated facilities must
post at least one clearly visible sign listing the following minimum information: a) project
name, b) brief project description, and c) operator name and phone number. The sign
or signs must be in English and any other language common in the local community to
more effectively communicate the minimum contact information. The sign(s) must be
maintained in a legible condition while temporary surface impoundments remain on site.

H. SPECIFICATIONS SPECIFIC TO DISCHARGES OF MASS ANIMAL MORTALITY
WASTES '

1. Disposal of large numbers of animal carcasses, and other high moisture waste streams
from mass mortality, may cause. wastes to exceed moisture-holding capacity at
regulated MSW landfills. To limit the impacts from a large moisture content waste load,
the owner/operator responsible for the regulated waste disposal facility shall implement
the following procedures: '

15
84



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

2.

Discharge high-moisture wastes for mass animal mortality wastes only at landfill areas
underiain by a composite liner system and a significant thickness of other types of solid
wastes.

Cover each layer of high-moisture mass animal mortality wastes (e.g., animal
carcasses, animal related wastes, etc.) with absorbent wastes or soil.

The thickness of each layer of mass mortality wastes shall be limited to less than two
feet, or the thickness of one animal carcass if greater than two feet.

For disaster-related mass animal mortality wastes streams that are in a liquid form (e.g.
raw eggs, etc.), the moisture content shall be reduced prior to discharge by mixing with
an absorbent material (e.g., saw dust, mulch, soil, efc.).

The owner/operator must implement a plan to prevent wild animals (e.g., birds,
mammals, reptiles, etc.) from coming into contact with mass animal mortality wastes
(e.g., provide and maintain adequate cover for temporary waste piles).

The owner/operator must ensure that all temporary waste piles containing mass animal
mortality wastes are discharged into the landfill prior to the end of the working day,
unless sufficient information is provided to demonstrate that a proposed alternative is
protective of water quality and human health for a given temporary waste pile. .

SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGES FROM OTHER EMERGENCY DISASTER
AREAS

1.

In the event of an emergency not within a disaster area declared by the Governor, this
General Order may be used for waste discharges necessary to mitigate an emergency
under either of the following conditions:

a. The Discharger submits a Notice of Intent to the Regional Water Board before
commencing discharges pursuant to this General Order. Discharge of wastes in
a manner requiring coverage under this General Order must not occur until the
Executive Officer provides the Discharger a written Notice of Applicability stating
that the proposed discharge is eligible and approved for coverage under this
General Order.

b. An emergency is declared by a state or local government agency and an Incident
Commander working through the Statewide Incident Management System and
the California Governor's Office. of Emergency Services directs that waste be
discharged to mitigate the emergency.

2. A Discharger who seeks coverage under Section I.1.1.a must submit a ROWD before

commencing the proposed discharges if the Executive Officer determines that a
proposed discharge is not eligible for coverage under this General Order.

3. A Discharger who seeks coverage under Section I.1.1.b must notify the Regional Water

Board by e-mail or telephone (or voicemail if after business hours) of the location, type
of discharge, and contact information before commencing the discharge. The

16
85



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

Discharger must also submit a Notice of Intent to the appropriate Regional Water Board
within 10 days after commencing the discharge, along with documentation that the
Discharger has met the conditions described in Section D.1.b.

4. The Discharger must comply with Sections A, B, and C of this General Order and the
appropriate Sections D through H of this General Order that are applicable to the
particular discharge.

J. ENROLLMENT PROCESS
NOTICE OF INTENT

1. Emergency Wastes From A Declared Disaster Area — Dischargers seeking coverage
under this General Order must submit a fully executed Notice of Intent (NOI)
(Attachment C) to the Regional Board, indicating the discharge meets the conditions of
this General Order. The NOI must be completed with all required information and
signed by the owner or authorized representative of the entity proposing to discharge
emergency wastes.

2. Emergency Wastes Not From A Declared Disaster Area — Dischargers desiring
coverage under this General Order for emergencies notin a Declared Disaster Area
(i.e., declared by the Governor) must either:

a. Submita Notice of Intent to the appropriate Regional Water Board and obtain a
Notice of Applicability from the Executive Officer prior to commencing the discharge
pursuant to Section 1.1.a of this General Order, or

b. Notify the Regional Water Board by e-mail, telephone (or voicemail if after business
hours) of the location, type of discharge, and contact information before
commencing the discharge and submit a Notice of Intent to the appropriate Regional
Water Board within 10 days after commencing the discharge. ‘In this instance, the
Notice of Intent must include documentation that the Discharger has met the
conditions described in Section 1.1.b regarding the emergency being declared by a
state or local government agency and an Incident Commander working through the
Statewide Incident Management System and the California Governor’s Office of
Emergency Services directs that waste be discharged to mitigate the emergency.

17
86



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

NOTICE OF TERMINATION

‘To terminate coverage, Dischargers must submit a fully executed Notice of Termination (NOT)
(Attachment D) to the Regional Board certifying they have satisfied the conditions of this
General Order. The NOT must be submitted within 10 working days of completing removal of
all disaster-related wastes and restoring the site to its original condition.

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned, Clerk to the Board, does herby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and
correct copy of an order duly and regularly adopted at a meeting of the State Water Resources
Control Board held on

Jeanine Townsend
Clerk to the Board



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

ATTACHMENT A - DEFINITIONS

Beneficial Uses — Pursuant to division 7, section 13050, subdivision (f) of the Water Code.
“Beneficial uses” of water of the state that may be protected against degradation include, but
are not limited to, domestic, municipal, agricultural and industrial supply, power generation,
recreation, aesthetic enjoyment, navigation, and preservation and enhancement of fish,
wildlife, and other aquatic resources or preserves.

Best Management Practice - A practice, or combination of practices, that is the most effective
and feasible means of controlling degradation or pollution generated by nonpoint sources for
the attainment of water quality.objectives.

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) - Refers to the statute promulgated in Public
Resources Code, beginning with section 21000, and regulations promulgated in California
Code of Regulations, title 14, chapter 3, beginning with section 15000, requiring state and local
agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of their actions and to avoid or
mitigate those impacts, if feasible.

Class |, II, Il — Refers to categories of waste management units regulated pursuant to
California Code of Regulations, title 27, for discharges of waste to land.

Day - A calendar day uniess otherwise specified.
Detention Pond - An excavated or diked area designed to capture and hold any wastewater.

Discharge - The accidental or intentional spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting,
emptying or dumping of wastes into or on any land or water.

Discharger - Any person who discharges waste which could affect the quality of waters of the
state.

Geocomposite Liner - A manufactured material using geotextiles, geogrids, geonets, and/or
geomembranes in laminated or composite form.

Geomembrane - Flexible materials in planar form manufactured to meet specific engineering

purposes. Commonly, they are used as a barrier to waste solids and fluids. The term
“geomembrane” is synonymous with “synthetic liner” and “flexible membrane liner.”

Groundwater - Water below the ground surface that is at or above atmospheric pressure (i.e.,
perched, unconfined, or confined water).

Leachate - Any liquid formed by the drainage of liquids from, or percolation/flow of liquids
through any waste.

Liquid Wastes - Waste materials which are not spadeable or in a physical state where the
waste materials behave sufficiently like a solid to be moved by a spade at normal outdoor
temperatures.

Liner - A material or combination of materials designed, constructed, and 'maintained to
contain any waste. '

19
88



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) - Refers to the national program
under Clean Water Act section 402 (33 U.S.C. § 1342), for regulation of discharges of
pollutants from point sources to waters of the United States. Discharges to surface waters are
illegal unless authorized by a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit.

Nonhazardous Solid Waste - Means all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semi-solid, and
liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes,
demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home
and industrial appliances, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes and other
discarded waste (whether of solid or semi-solid consistency); provided that such wastes do not
contain wastes which must be managed as hazardous wastes, or wastes which contain
soluble pollutants in concentrations which exceed applicable water quality objectives, or could
.cause degradation of waters of the state (i.e., designated waste).

Pollution - Defined in section 13050, subdivision (1) of the Water Code.

Precipitation - Is any condensate of atmospheric water vapor and includes hail, mist, rain,
sleet, or snow.

Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water Board) - All references to a
Regional Water Board, include the Executive Officer, who may act for the Regional Water
Board in carrying out this General Order. (Wat. Code, § 13050, subd. (b) & § 13223.)

Residual - The waste destined for disposal or recycling, and removed from the site.

Runoff - Any precipitation, wastewater, or other liquids that drain from any part of a waste
management unit.

Run-on - Any precipitation, wastewater, or other liquids that drain onto any part of a waste
management unit.

Water Quality Control Plan (Basin Plan) - Defined in division 7, section 13050, subdivision
(j) of the Water Code.

Wastewater - Refers to leachate or.any other liquid flowing from, or on a waste management
unit.

Water Boards - Refers collectively to the State Water Resources Control Board and the nine
Regional Water Quality Control Boards.

Waste - Defined in Water Code section 13050, subdivision (d).
Water Quality Objectives - Defined in Water Code section 13050, subdivision (h).
Waters of the State - Defined in Water Code section 13050, subdivision (e).

20




STATE WATER RESOURCES.CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

ATTACHMENT B - Landfills that can Accept Disaster-Related Waste

Region 1
Landfill County Discharger(s)
Central Landfill Sonoma Republic Services
Region 2
Landfill County Discharger(s)
Potrero Hills Landfill Solano Potrero Hills Landfill, Inc.
Redwood Landfill Marin Waste Management, Inc.
Clover Flat Landfill -Napa Clover Flat Disposal Services, Inc.

Keller Canyon Landfill

Contra Costa

Allied Waste Industries

Vasco Road Landfill Alameda BFI Waste Systems

Newby Island Landfill Santa Clara Allied Waste Industries

Kirby Canyon Landfill Santa Clara . Waste Management, Inc.

Guadalupe Landfill Santa Clara Waste Management, Inc

Ox Mountain Landfill San Mateo Republic Services, Inc.
Region 3

Landfill County Discharger(s)

Tajiguas Class Il Landﬁll

Santa Barbara

County of Santa Barbara

Santa Maria Regional
Landfill .

Santa Barbara

City of Santa Maria

Santa Maria Integrated
Waste Management, Los
Flores Class Il Landfill

Santa Barbara

City of Santa Maria

‘Landfill

San Benito

Cold Canyon Class lil San Luis Waste Connect|ons Inc.
| Landfill Obispo :
Chicago Grade Class llI San Luis. Chicago Grade Landfill and Recycllng,
Landfill Obispo LLC
Paso Robles Class lll San Luis City of Paso Robles
Landfill - Obispo _
Camp Roberts Class lli San Luis California Army National Guard
Landfill , Obispo
Johnson Canyon Road Monterey - Salinas Valley Solid Waste Authority
Class |l Landfill - _
Monterey Peninsula Class Monterey Monterey Regional Waste Management
Il Landfill - District
| Buena Vista Class 1l Santa Cruz County of Santa Cruz
Landfill - _
City of Watsonville Class Il | Santa Cruz | City of Watsonville
Landfill '
Santa Cruz Resource Santa Cruz City of Santa Cruz
Recovery Facility , '
‘John Smith Road Class |l| County of San Benito Integrated Waste

Management Department

21
90




STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

Region 4 \
Landfill County Discharger(s)
Calabasas Landfill Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts of Los
' E Angeles County
Chiquita Canyon Landfill Los Angeles Chiguita Canyon, LLC
Savage Canyon Landfill Los Angeles City of Whittier . ,
Simi Valley Landfill Ventura Waste Management of CA, Inc.
Burbank Landfill Los Angeles City of Burbank
Sunshine Canyon Landfill Los Angeles Republic Services, Inc.
| Toland Road Landfill Ventura | Ventura Regional Sanitation District
Region 5
Landfill County Discharger(s)
Altamont Sanitary Landfill Alameda Waste Management of Alameda County
Neal Road Landfill ' Butte Butte County Public Works, Waste
Management Division
Rock Creek Landfill Calaveras Calaveras County
American Avenue Landfill Fresno County of Fresno
Bakersfield Metro Landfill Kern County of Kern
Clean Harbors Buttonwillow . | Kern Clean Harbors Buttonwillow Inc.
Facility '
Shafter-Wasco Landfill | Kern County of Kern
Taft Sanitary Landfill Kern County of Kern
Waste Management Kern - Waste Management
McKittrick Facility ‘
Avenal Landfill Kings City of Avenal
Chem Waste Management | Kings Chemical Waste Management
— Kettleman _
East LLake Landfill Lake Lake County Public Works Services
: B Department
Fairmead Landfill Madera County of Madera
Billy Wright Landfill Merced County of Merced
Highway 59 Landfill Merced - County of Merced
Western Regional Landfill Placer Western Placer Waste Management |
: Authority
Kiefer Landfill Sacramento . | County of Sacramento, Department of
i Waste Management and Recycling
Foothill Sanitary Landfill - San Joaquin San Joaquin County Department of
' Public Works
Forward, Inc San Joaquin Republic Services
North County Landfill San Joaquin San Joaquin County Department of
L Public Works .
Anderson Solid Waste Inc. | Shasta Anderson Landfill Inc.
West Central Landfill Shasta Shasta County Department of Public
Works
Hay Road Landfill Solano Recology Hay Road

22




STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ _
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

Landfill County Discharger(s)
Fink Road Landfill (LF-2) Stanislaus Stanislaus County Department of
. Environmental Resources '
Fink Road Landfill (LF-3) Stanislaus Stanislaus - County Department of
: Environmental Resources
Red Bluff Landfill Tehama Waste Connections, Inc.
Visalia Landfill Tulare Tulare County Solid Waste Management
Central Landfill Yolo Yolo County Integrated Waste -
, Management Division
Ostrom Road Landfill Yuba Recology Ostrom Road
Region 6
Landfill , County Discharger(s) -
Antelope Valley Public Los Angeles Waste Management of CA, Inc.
Landfill :
Lancaster Landfill Los Angeles Waste Management of CA, Inc.
Barstow Landfill San San Bernardino County
Bernardino Department of Public Works,
- Solid Waste Management Division
Fort Irwin Landfill San - U.S. Army -Training Center
Bernardino ]
Victorville Landfill San San Bernardino County
Bernardino Department of Public Works,
Solid Waste Management Division
Region 7
Landfill County Discharger(s)
Allied Imperial Landfill Imperial Imperial Landfill, Inc.
Landers Landfill San County of San Bernardino, Solid Waste
Bernardino Management Division
Region 8
Landfill County Discharger(s)
Frank R. Bowerman Landfill | Orange Orange County Waste and Recycling
Badlands Landfill Riverside Riverside County '
" Department of Waste Resources
Lamb Canyon Landfill Riverside Riverside County
v ' : Department of Waste Resources
El Sobrante Landfill Riverside Waste Management, Inc.
Mid-Valley Landfill San San Bernardino County
Bernardino Department of Public Works, -
Solid Waste Management Division
- San Timoteo Landfill San San Bernardino County
Bemardino Department of Public Works,
Solid Waste Management Division
California Street Landfill San City of Redlands
' . Bernardino

23

92




STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

Region 9 |

Landfill County Discharger(s)

North Chollas Burnsite San Diego ‘City of San Diego, Environmental
Protection, Environmental Services

Sycamore Landfill San Diego Republic Services

Prima Deshecha Materials = | Santa Ana Orange County Waste & Recycling

Recovery Facility _ '

Las Pulgas Landfill San Diego US Marine Corps-Camp Pendleton

24
93



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ .
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

ATTACHMENT C — NOTICE OF INTENT

S_tate Water Resources Control Board
Order No. 20XX=-XXXX-XXXX

TO COMPLY WITH GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR DISASTER-
RELATED WASTES

. PROPERTY / FACILITY INFORMATION

Property/Facility Name:

Property/Facility Contact.

Property/Facility

| Address:

City: County: State: Zip:  XXXXX
: (XXX) XXX- :

Telephone:  XXXX ~ Fax: _ Email:

Assessor Parcel

Number(s):

Il. PROPERTY/FACILITY OWNER INFORMATION

Property/Facility Owner Name:

Owner Mailing Address:

City: County: State: - Zip: XXXXX

(XXX) XXX-
Telephone:  XXXX Fax: Email:

Il. PROPERTY/FACILITY OPERATOR INFORMATION

Property/Facility Operator Name:

Operator Mailing Address:

City: County: State: Zip:  XXXXX

| Telephone:  (XXX) XXX-XXXX Fax: Email:

Assessor Parcel Number(s):

25
94



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

IV. DESCRIPTION OF DISCHARGE

Describe the discharge (i.e., source(s) of discharge, pollutants of concern, period and
frequency, efc.). Use additional pages as needed. Provide a map of the property / facility.

V. CERTIFICATION

TO COMPLY WITH GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR DISASTER-
RELATED WASTES

| certify, under penality of law, that | have personally examined and am familiar with the
information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my inquiry of
those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, | believe that the
information is true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that there are significant penalties for
submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment.

Signature (Owner or Authorized Representative)

Date

Print Name Title

26
95 .



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ .
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

ATTACHMENT D — NOTICE OF TERMINATION

TO COMPLY WITH GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS DISASTER-
RELATED WASTES

. FINAL WASTE DISPOSAL INFORMATION

Final Disposition of Waste: [ ] Off-site/Landfill Disposal [_] On-site Reuse/Disposal
[] Off-site Reuse/Disposal [] Other:

Property Owner/Discharger Name:

Property Owner/Discharge Contact and Title:

Property Owner/Discharger Mailing Address:

City: County: State: Zip:
Telephone: ' Fax: Email:
Assessor Parcel Number(s): Hydrologic Area/Subarea:

Date(s) Waste Dispbsed:

Quantity of Waste Disposed:
(in cubic yards for each disposal date)

Disposal Location(s):
(for each disposal date)

27
96



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
ORDER WQ 20XX-XXXX-DWQ
GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS for DISASTER-RELATED WASTES

ll. FINAL DISPOSAL CERTIFICATION

| certify, under penalty of law, that | have personally examined and am familiar with the
information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my inquiry of
those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, 1 believe that the
information is true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that there are significant penalties for
submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment.

Signature (Owner or Authorized Representative) Date

Print Name Title

28
97



98



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

Water Boards

Prixsotng Californias Water

GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR (begin
insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS,
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD ORDER
WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ

(begin insert) DRAFT October 31, 2019 (end insert) (begin
delete) August4,-2015 (end delete)

> 4

CALIFORNIA

Water Boards

STATE WATER RESQURCES CONTROL BOARD
REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARDS

99




ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

Table of Contents

GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL
(end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS, STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL

BOARD ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ....c. s 1
ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS.........ccoconvinninee LN SRR RN, ST N R 3
(begin insert) BACKGROUND FOR REVISING ORDER WQ 2015-0121-DWQ............ 5
FINDINGS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION......coiiiiiinisiinnncs e 6

Table 1. Biosolids Feedstock Ceiling Concentrations.............coveriemsnnnnsissnsneeee: 11
SCOPE OF THIS GENERAL ORDER .....ootiiiiimiir i 11
Table 2. Allowable FEEUSIOCKS .......crumuierrrarriecsisn i 12
Table 3. Tier 1 Percolation Rate and Depth to Groundwater Standards..................... 13
APPLICATION PROCESS.............ccn. e SRR Saag - £ s a s e s s 17
ANTIDEGRADATION ANALYSIS ...ooviirininnieiis i 18
TITLE 27 APPLICABILITY ..o v ereesateeeseeteetteeeeeieenrsrrasteteaie e a e nnr e aaaas 21
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT ...covvivnenne SRR PP 22
OTHER REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS ..ot 27
IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED .....cvtimiieuaietsissssis st 28
PROHIBITIONS .....viitieteesreesseseisesnsssssses b s s eeveneenernnes 28
SPECIFICATIONS ...oovieetieeeeesiestsrsssse e st ...30

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND OPERATION REQUIREMENTS - ALL TIERS ...31
(begin insert) DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND OPERATION REQUIREMENTS

FOR COMPOSTING MANURE AT TIER 1 FACILITIES ..o 33
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND OPERATION REQUIREMENTS - TIER 2 ONLY33
MONITORING REQUIREMENTS........... T U PPN PPR R 35
MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS ..o ree e R 35
SITE CLOSURE REQUIREMENTS ..ottt e 35
REPORT REQUIREMENTS ....oouierminiiniisimmnsssn st 36
NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS ....ooviimmmmiieniismsmmns s o e 38
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS ...couiiiiiineiiiiimnn i P R— 40
CERTIFICATION ........... rienrenedod T I e e N I 42
ATTACHMENT A - DEFINITIONS ....cooriiininiiriinend o e TS - S EEREEEE e 1
ATTACHMENT B — MONITORING'AND REPORTING PROGRAM......cccoonieeiiininnaenn 1
A. ROUTINE MONITORING REQUIREMENTS ....oooiiiiiiiimnisie s 1
Table B-1. Detention Pond Monitoring ........... OO SISO PPP PSPPI 3

100



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

Table B-2. Biosolids MONIOMING........cccouveurueiimiiriieee ettt es e eeeeeeeeeneeee e et 4
Table B-3. Groundwater Monitoring ......... e R s « s e M e Mt e e 5
B. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS .......ccoountmrrimnenee e eeeees e 7
C. RECORD-KEEPING REQUIREMENTS .......coooieeereireeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeoeoeeeoeeo . 10
ATTACHMENT C — NOTICE OF INTENT ......oiiitiiireeeeeeeeeeee s e eeee e ees e oo 1
DISCHARGER INFORMATION .....cccciiitieiititiie e e eeeeeeeres e e eeeeeesse et |
COMPOSTING OPERATION INFORMATION.......cueceeeteeeeeeeeeeeee e 1
REASONS FOR FILING.......cooiiieeeeeeeeetee et 1
STORMWATER PERMIT ........ooiimiiiiei ettt 2
OTHER PERMITS ...ttt ee st e e te st st ee e 2
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) ......eveveeeeeeeeeeeeeee o 2
PROGCESS ...t eee e et 2
SITE CONDITIONS ...ttt et er e s e ee e e e et 3
DESIGN SPECIFICATION TIERS (check one)................ e 3
TECHNICAL REPORT ..ottt sttt sttt esre e se e s en e eess e ee e 3
FILING FEE........ ..ottt e ee e e e e et 3
CERTIFICATION ...ttt ettt et e ee e e e e oo e e 3
ATTACHMENT D — TECHNICAL REPORT REQUIREMENTS ..o 1
A. GENERAL INFORMATION ...oiviiiiiiicceccictiis e eeeeeeseeseeee st s s ees e 1
B. SITE CONDITION INFORMATION.......coooiteieiimeeeeeeee oo e 3
C. DESIGN INFORMATION ..ottt ettt et en e ee e et 4
D. OPERATIONS AND MONITORING INFORMATION ....oovooeomeeeeeeeoeo 5
E. SITE CLOSURE INFORMATION ........ccoiviiiteeieeereeeeeeseeee oo - 6
F. COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE (EXISTING FACILITIES) .:.ovoveeceeeeeteeeeeieeeeoe oo 6
(begin insert) ATTACHMENT E ~ NOTICE OF TERMINATION ......cccoovmrveieieeennnn 7
DISCHARGER INFORMATION .....oceeeiiiietiteeeiete et e ee e, 7
COMPOSTING OPERATION INFORMATION.........cvteeeeeeeeeeeee e, 7
REASON FOR TERMINATION .......coeviuiuriireesrees e seeeeeseseeesessces s seee s ee e 7
CERTIFICATION. ..ottt et ettt e et et e e en e e e s, 2

101



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Antidegradation Policy

Basin Plan
BMP

BPTC
CalOES
CalRecycle

CEQA

cm/s

CPLX

EDF

EIR

EQ

FEMA

FDS

Industrial General Permit

LEA

MDL
mg/L
mg/kg
pmhos/cm
MRP
NOA

NOI

NPDES

State Water Board Resolution 68-16, Statement of
Policy with Respect to Maintaining High Quality of
Waters of California

Water Quality Control Plan

Best Management Practices

Best Practicable Treatment or Control

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services

California Department of Resources Recycling and
Recovery

California Environmental Quality Act
Centimeters per second

Complexity of the Discharge Rating
Electronic Deliverable Format
Environmental Impact Report
Exceptional Quality

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Fixed Dissolved Solids

Waste Discharge Requirements for Discharge of
Storm Water Associated with Industrial Activities
Excluding Construction Activities

Local Enforcement Agency
Method Detection Limit

Milligrams per Liter

Milligrams per kilogram
Micromhos per centimeter
Monitoring and Reporting Program
Notice of Applicability

Notice of Intent to Comply with the Terms of General
Waste Discharge Requirements for Composting
Operations

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

102



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

PDF Portable Document Format

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works

PQL Practical Quantitation Limit

QA/QC Quality Assurance/Quality Control

Regional Water Board Regional Water Quality Control Board

State Water Board State Water Resources Control Board

TDS Total Dissolved Solids

TTWQ Threat to Water Quality Rating

U.S. EPA United States Environmental Protection Agency
WDRs Waste Discharge Requirements

103



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

(begin insert) BACKGROUND FOR REVISING ORDER WQ 2015-0121-DWQ

On August 4, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board)
adopted General Waste Discharge Requirements for Composting Operations (General
Order. Order WQ-2015-0121-DWQ). The General Order includes requirements to
protect water quality from composting activities while streamlining the permitting
process. The General Order applies to facilities that aerobically compost materials such
as green waste, manure, anaerobic digestate, biosolids, food scraps, and scrap paper
products. Eligible composting operations are classified into two tiers based on types of
feedstocks used, volume of materials on site, and hydrogeologic site conditions. Tier 2
specifications are more protective of water quality than Tier 1 and apply to facilities with
greater volumes or materials which pose a higher threat to water quality.

At the September 19, 2017 State Water Board meeting, staff presented an informational
item on the implementation of the General Order, providing information about
performance measures, enroliment, and compliance. Stakeholders expressed concerns
reqarding limitations of the agricultural exemption and requirements for composting
manure. The Board directed staff to evaluate the General Order relative to these
concerns and report back with recommendations in six months.

At the March 20, 2018 State Water Board meeting, staff presented an informational item
with recommendations for pursuing changes to the agricultural exemption, requirements
for composting manure, and to provide clarity reqarding applicability of the General
Order. The Board supported staff's recommendations and directed staff to revise the
General Order. These revisions affect new composting operations or existing
composting operations that may now be eligible for a different tier or exemption.

Manure is a nutrient-rich material and can be a beneficial soil amendment when applied
at aqronomic rates. Manure may also be composted to create a beneficial soil
amendment. A variety of methods are used to manage manure at agricultural
operations including land spreading, anaerobic digestion, and composting. Currently,
the predominant practice for manure management is stockpiling on site and applying to

feed crops.

Research by the Central Valley Dairy Representative Monitoring Program (CVDRMP)
indicates there are greater impacts to water quality from over-application of manure to
fields than from corrals and manure storage areas; some dairies have more manure
than can be land-applied agronomically on-site. Untreated manure is expensive to
transport and the crops to which it can be applied are limited.

The CVDRMP evaluated best management practices (BMPs) for storing, handling, and
processing dairy manure. Recommendations were submitted in 2019 on behalf of
CVDRMP members to the Central Valley Regional Water Board based on results of
monitoring and research conducted by CVDRMP. One key recommendation for
achieving a whole-farm nitrogen balance at all dairies is to build the capacity for
exporting excess manure from dairies to willing participants (e.g., farmers in need of
nitrogen fertilizer or organic material to improve soil health) in an economically
sustainable manner. One potential component of expanding the capacity to export
manure is composting.

104



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

Research to evaluate BMPs for composting manure in California soil and climate
conditions will performed as a result of a State Water Board contract with the University

of California at Davis. The amendments to the General Order remove barriers to create

compost for beneficial uses.
Order WQ-2020-XXXX-DWQ amends Order WQ-2015-0121-DWQ. (end insert)

FINDINGS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) finds that:

1. The State of California currently disposes an estimated 35 million tons of
waste annually in landfills, of which 32 percent is compostable organic
material, 29 percent is construction debris, and 17 percent is paper.

2. Composting is the biological decomposition of organic materials by
microorganisms under controlled aerobic conditions to create a product (e.g.,
soil amendment or soil blend). Compostable materials comprise a wide
range of material types: grass, leaves, branches, prunings, stumps, wood
waste, agricultural materials, manure, food, and biosolids.

3.  Composting organic material yields environmental benefits by recycling
nutrients and diverting materials from Iahdfi_lls. Diversion of compostable
materials from landfills reduces the amount of material landfilled and extends
landfill capacity and service life.

4. Compost can be a valuable soil amendment that improves soil tiith and plant
health, increases soil water holding capacity, reduces runoff, adds beneficial
micro-organisms, adds organic matter, and sequesiers carbon.

5. Composting activities typically occur on open and uncovered land, exposed
to precipitation. However, some composting activities are performed within
structures, protected from precipitation.

6. Compostable materials may contain nutrients, metals, salts, pathogens, and
oxygen- reducing compounds that can degrade water quality if aliowed to
migrate into groundwater or surface water. The process of composting can
allow contaminants to migrate with leachate or wastewater from these
materials. Additionally, composting nutrient-rich feedstocks on more
permeable soil has the potential to create elevated nitrate concentrations in
groundwater. ' )

7. Composting facilities may contain areas where composting operations occur
as well as ancillary buildings (e.g., office space, equipment storage, etc.).
For the purposes of these General Waste Discharge Requirements for
Composting Operations (General Order), the term “Composting Operation”
shall mean the area at which operations are conducted, including the
receiving area, pre-processing, processing, curing, storage areas, detention

105



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

10.

11.

12.

ponds, and other areas associated with production of compost, including
storage areas for feedstocks, additives, or amendments. Attachment A,
attached hereto and made part of this order, provides definitions of terms and
phrases used in this General Order.

For the purposes of this General Order, all references to compost include
compost piles actively being composted, cured, and stored on site to mature
prior to sale or use (final product).

Water Code section 13260, subdivision (a) requires that any person
discharging waste or proposing to discharge waste, other than to a
community sewer system, that could affect the quality of the waters of the
state, shall file a report of waste discharge. Water Code section 13263
provides that a Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water
Board) or the State Water Board shall prescribe waste discharge
requirements (WDRs) that implement the Regional Water Boards’ water
quality control plans (Basin Plans) and take into consideration the beneficial
uses to be protected and the water quality objectives reasonably required for
that purpose and the need to prevent nuisance. “Waste” is defined in Water
Code section 13050, subdivision (d).

Assembly Bill No. 341 enacted in 2011 (201 1-2012 Reg. Sess.; Stats. 2011,
ch. 476) established a policy goal that not less than 75 percent of the solid
waste generated in the state be source-reduced, recycled, or composted by
2020. The California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle) developed a plan to increase the diversion of compostable
materials.

CalRecycle has adopted regulations governing compostable mater_ial
handling facilities. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, div. 7, ch. 3.1.) The regulations
address composting operations including facility siting, design standards,
operating standards, environmental health standards, such as sampling and
pathogen reduction requirements for the compost products derived from
compostable materials prior to being sold or given away, recordkeeping,
monitoring, reporting, and site restoration. CalRecycle’s authority does not
include regulating water quality. The State Water Board and each Regional
Water Board have primary responsibility for coordination and control of water
quality (Wat. Code, § 13001).

Historic regulation of composting operations by the Regional Water Boards
has included individual WDRs or conditional waivers of WDRs. This General
Order provides a streamlined method to allow the Regional Water Boards to
permit composting operations and address potential impacts to water quality.

106



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

13. (begin delete) Dischargers (end delete) (begin insert) Composting (end
insert) activities covered by individual WDRs or a conditional waiver of

WDRs may continue (begin delete) dissharging (end delete) (begin insert)
operating (end insert) under that authority until thase orders expire or come
up for renewal. Atthat time, or earlier at the discretion of the Regional Water
Boards, it is the intent of the State Water Board that Regional Water Boards
will enroll all eligible composting operations under this General Order (begin
insert) as appropriate (end insert). If a Regional Water Board determines
that, due to site-specific conditions (begin insert) and operations, the General
Order will not appropriately address a composting operation or if (end insert)
coverage under this General Order will not be protective of water quality, the
Regional Water Board may issue individual WDRs for a composting
operation. If a composting operation is co-located at a (begin delete) langfill
er-other (end delete) facility that has individual or general WDRs, the
composting operation does not need to be covered under this General Order
if the (begin delete) landfill-or-other (end delete) facility’'s WDRs include
requirements for the composting (begin delete) epsration (end delete) (begin
insert) activities that are protective of water quality (end insert) as determined
by the Regional Water Board.

14. Water Code section 13263, subdivision (i) states that the State Water Board
or a Regional Water Board may prescribe general WDRs for a category of
discharges if the State Water Board or Regional Water Board finds or
determines that all of the following criteria apply to the discharges in that
category:

a. The discharges are produced by the same or similar operations:

b. The discharges involve the same or similar types of waste;

c. The discharges require the same or similar treatment standards; and.
d

. The discharges are more appropriately regulated under general WDRs
than individual WDRs.

Composting operations that will be regulated under this General Order are
consistent with the criteria listed above, and therefore a general orderis
appropriate. A Il discharges regulated under this order will be from similar
operations and will be consistent with the description of composting operations as
defined in this General Order. The discharges will use similar containment
methods (e.g. pads and ponds). Individual WDRs are not necessary because the
discharges are similar and discharge requirements would be similar if individual
WDRs were issued.

107



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

This General Order does not preempt or supersede the authority of federal,
state, or local governmental agencies to prohibit, restrict, or control
discharges of waste subject to their jurisdiction.

A composting operation typically consists of a receiving and storage area for
feedstocks, additives and amendments; a pre-processing area where
materials are prepared for composting (screening, size adjustment, etc.); an
active composting area; a curing area where the material matures before
sale (moisture content and temperature is reduced); and a final screening
and storage area where the final compost product is prepared for sale.
Additives and amendments are often added to compost to adjust moisture
content, product bulk, or pH.

Composting can be done on a small or large scale. This General Order only
addresses composting operations that receive, process, and store at least
500 cubic yards of materials at any given time.

Composting typically results in release of (begin delete) (end delete)
(begin insert) liquid (end insert) from the feedstock material as biological
decomposition.occurs. The released (begin delete) (end

delete) (begin insert) liquid is (end insert) leachate and, if sufficient in volume,
will drain from the compost pile. Precipitation that falls on, or water that is
applied to thé compost piles may also result in (begin delete) ! I (end
delete) (begin insert) leachate (end insert) draining from the compost piles.
(begin delete) 4s (end delete) (begin insert) Leachate (end insert)
may contain (begin insert) dissolved solids, (end insert) nutrients, metals,
salts, pathogens, and/or oxygen reducing compounds. .

Water (begin delete) =d-(end delete) (begin insert) evaporates
(end insert) from the compost piles, in part due to the heat generated in
biological decomposition. (begin delete) (end delete) (begin insert)
Liquids are (end insert) added to maintain appropriate moisture content.
(begin delete)he (end delete) (begin insert) Added liguids (end insert)
may include wastewater collected in (begin delete) ke (end delete) detention
pond(begin insert)s(end insert), or water from (begin delete) her(end
delete) (begin insert) 2 (end insert) water supply source.

Compostlng operations have the potential to degrade water quality W|th
nutrients (e.g., nitrate), salinity (e.g., sodium chloride), pathogens, oxygen-
reducing materials, sediment, and other waste constituents. Implementation
of best practicable treatment or control (BPTC) can prevent or limit the
degradation.

Composting operation setbacks from water supply wells and surface water
bodies are provided in this General Order. Setbacks are included as a

108



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

22,

23.

24.

25.

26.

means of reducing pathogenic risks by coupling pathogen inactivation rates
with groundwater travel time to a well or other potential exposure route (e.g.
water contact activities). -In general, a substantial unsaturated zone reduces
pathogen survival compared to saturated soil conditions. Fine grained (silt
or clay) soil particles reduce the rate of groundwater transport and therefore
are generally less likely to transport pathogens; coarse grained soil particles
or fracture flow groundwater conditions may be more likely to transport
pathogens. Setbacks also provide attenuation of other wastewater
constituents through physical, chemical, and biological processes.

Strategies to control infiltration of wastewater into groundwater include
reducing the permeability of areas where compostable materials are stored
or composted, constructing sloped pads to facilitate drainage to a detention
pond or tank, and reducing the permeability of detention ponds.

Wastewater refers to leachate or any other liquid flowing from, or on the
working surface. That wastewater from the working surface may be
conveyed to a detention pond. Wastewater may be reapplied to'the compost
piles as needed.

Total dissolved solids (TDS) consists of both volatile (organic) and fixed -
(inorganic) fractions. Varying concentrations of volatile dissolved solids will
exist in wastewater that is collected in the detention pond. Volatile dissolved
solids in the wastewater reapplied to compost piles may be reduced to
negligible concentrations by filtration and biclogical degradation. However,
fixed dissolved solids (FDS) do not degrade biologically.

The 40 Code of Federal Regulations part 503 biosolids regulations establish
ceiling concentration limits for metals; pollutant concentration limits; Class A
pathogen requirements; Class B pathogen requirements; site restrictions;
and vector attraction reduction requirements.

This General Order requires biosolids that are used as a feedstock at the
composting facility to comply, at a minimum, with the ceiling concentrations
listed in Table 1 of 40 Code of Federal Regulations part 503.13 listed in
Table 1 below, and Class B pathogen requirements. The United States
Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) regularly reviews, and may
revise, the limitations and requirements of 40 Code of Federal Regulations,
part 503. Consult 40 Code of Federal Regulations part 503 for updates.

10
109




ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

Table 1. Biosolids Feedstock Ceiling Concentrations

27.

28.

- Constituent Ceiling Concentration
i (Milligrams per Kilogram)
Arsenic 75
Cadmium 85
Copper 4,300
Lead 840
Mercury 57
‘Molybdenum 75
Nickel 420
Selenium 100
Zinc - 7,500

' SCOPE OF THIS GENERAL ORDER
The amount and type of feedstocks composted, as well as site conditions
such as depth to groundwater, percolation rate, and proximity to surface
water and wells inherently affects the threat to water quality. This General
Order employs a tiered approach to regulating composting operations. -

Only composting operations that comply with the allowable feedstock and
setback requirements are eligible for coverage under this General Order.

a. Tier 1 and Tier 2 allowable feedstocks (as defined in Attachment A) are
limited to the materials listed in Table 2. (begin delete) below: (end
delete)

b. (begin insert) Composting operations shall be setback at least 100 feet
from the nearest surface water body and/or the nearest water supply
well. A lesser setback distance may be allowed by the Regional Water
Board if the Discharger can demonstrate that the groundwater, geologic,
topographic, and well construction conditions at the site are adequate to
protect water quality. (end insert)

11

110



ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

Table 2. Allowable Feedstocks

Tier 1 Feedstocks: Tier 2 Feedstocks:
¢ (begin insert) Vegetative (end * Food materials (non-vegetative),
insert) agricultural materials, e Biosolids (Class A, B, and/or
» Green materials, Exceptional Quality (EQ)): as
« Paper materials, defined in Attachment A,
» Vegetative food materials, * (begin delete) Manure; (end

delete) Anaerobic digestate
derived from allowable Tier 2
feedstocks, and

e A combination of allowable Tier
1 and Tier 2 feedstocks

* Anaerobic digestate derived
from allowable Tier 1
feedstocks,

* Residentially co-collected or
self-hauled food and green
materials (begin insert), and,

¢ Manure: in accordance with
Finding 29 and Design,
Construction, and Operation
Requirements for Composting
‘Manure at Tier 1 Facilities. (end
insert)

processed, and stored at any given time; and hydrogeologic siting
considerations. The tiers are defined as follows:

a. Tier 1 includes a composting operation that meets all the following
conditions:

1) The feedstocks are limited to Tier 1 feedstocks listed in Table 2 and
defined in Attachment A;

2) The facility receives, processes, and stores less than 25,000 cubic.
yards of a combination of allowable Tier 1 feedstocks, compost
(active, curing, and final product), additives and amendments on site
at any given time; and

12
111




ORDER WQ 2020-XXXX-DWQ, GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
FOR (begin insert) COMMERCIAL (end insert) COMPOSTING OPERATIONS

3) The percolation rate and depth to the highest anticipated
groundwater level underlying the composting operation is consistent
with Table 3 below. (begin insert)

Manure may be accepted as a feedstock at Tier 1 facilities if a
groundwater protection monitoring plan is implemented for the
composting operation. The Discharger shall confirm this intention by
submitting a complete Groundwater Protection Monitoring Plan in the
technical report with the Notice of Intent, as described in Attachment
D. Groundwater monitoring wells must be constructed and monitored
in accordance with the requirements of Attachment D to allow early
detection of potential migration of waste constituents to the
environment. If a groundwater protection monitoring plan is not
implemented, the Discharger must seek coverage under Tier 2. (end
insert)

Table 3. Tier 1 Percolation Rate and Depth to Groundwater Standards -

Soil Percolation Rate Depth to Groundwater
(minimum)
< 1 minutes per inch 50 feet
1 to 5 minutes per inch 20 feet
> 5 to 30 minutes per inch 8 feet
> 30 minutes per inch 5 feet

b. Tier 2 includes a composting operation that meets one or more of the
following conditions:

1) The feedstocks include any of the Tier 2 feedstocks listed in Table 2,
and defined in Attachment A;

2) The facility receives, processes and stores 25,000 cubic yards or
more of (begin delete) a-combinatienef (end delete) allowable Tier 1
and (begin insert) /or (end insert) Tier 2 feedstocks, compost,
additives and amendments on site at any given time; and/or

3) The site-specific hydrogeologic conditions do not meet the Tier 1
percolation rate and depth to groundwater standards listed in Table
3. (begin insert)

30. The following activities are unlikely to degrade water quality if the
management practices noted below are implemented and are therefore
conditionally exempt from t